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GROUP STRUCTURE
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Chigo Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company “Chigo” or the “Group”)
were founded in 1994, and has become one of the top air-conditioner brands in the People’s of Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group is principally engaged in the design, development, manufacture and sale of air-conditioning products.
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KY1-1111
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Bank of China, Foshan Nanhai Lishui Branch
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Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 449

Listing date: 13 July 2009

Board lot size: 2,000 shares

As at 31 December 2015:

No. of shares issued: 8,434,178,000 shares

Market capitalisation: HKD1.01 billion

CORPORATE WEBSITES

www.china-chigo.com
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chigo/index.htm

CORPORATE CONTACT INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

HONG KONG

Please contact our Company Secretary at:
Telephone: (852) 2997 7449

Facsimile: (852) 2997 7446

Email: ir@china-chigo.com.hk

PRC

Please contact our Investment and Securities Department at:
Telephone: (86) 757 8878 3289
Facsimile: (86) 757 8562 8012
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KEY EVENTS AND RECOGNITION IN 2015

On January 19, the kick-off meeting for 2015 lean manufacturing project was held. "Lean
innovation for business excellence, added value for customers" was established as the theme for
Year 2015 to deploy the project as a whole.

In January, a whole series of CHIGO products, including split type air-conditioners, window type
air-conditioners, portable air-conditioners, and dehumidifiers were displayed on the AHR EXPO —
one of the largest exhibitions in United States.

On February 5, the gala premiere of Chinese New Year
Blockbuster movie “Dragon Blade" and CHIGO Special Fan
Meeting were held in Guangzhou. As the sole sponsor of
the movie, CHIGO has once again worked closely with our
brand spokesperson Jackie Chan.

In February, the new VI (Visual Identity)
office building of CHIGO Poland was
completed, helping CHIGO to transform
and enter high-end markets with its
brand new image. It was also the first
overseas agent to use new VI system in
new office building design.
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KEY EVENTS AND RECOGNITION IN 2015

In the morning of March 21, the 10th lean
salon of China JISHUKEN (a seminar based on
practical diagnosis) was held in CHIGO.

On March 28, CHIGO held the opening
ceremony of employee qualifications booster
scheme for the third year. In recent years,
the company has provided diverse online and
offline trainings for all employees, such as
academic boosters, ELN learning, and

skills trainings.

In March, the “2014 — 2015 Air-Conditioner Internet Brand Reputation and Influence Report”
jointly launched by Legalweekly and a third party public opinion company showed that CHIGO
has elevated to the top three and ranked second among
- - the top ten word of mouth air conditioner brands in
China.

In March, 100,000 sets of second generation CHIGO
smart cloud air-conditioner procured by GOME was fully
on sale, starting the first move for intelligence market in
2015 spring.

On April 15, the 117th China Import
and Export Fair (Canton Fair) kicked
off as scheduled. CHIGO group
attended the fair with products in 5
major areas, including residential air-
conditioners, central air-conditioners,
ice wash products, wine coolers and
small household electrical appliances,
and won the attention of hundreds
of well-known medias including
China Central television, China
National Radio, the People's Daily
Online, Ifeng, CDC, Huangiu, and
Guangdong TV.
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KEY EVENTS AND RECOGNITION IN 2015

May 9 marked the grand
opening of the flagship
CHIGO Sanshui store
adopting new B To C SI
(Store Identity) regulations.
The CHIGO flagship store
adopting new Sl has not
only further strengthened
the high-end brand image
of CHIGO, but also directly
stimulated the B To C
retail volume.

On May 14, the second quarter of the

Eagle Tour ® MTP (Management Training
Program) officially kicked off. This season of
management skills development training had
a total of five sections, where more than 180
senior executives participated in

the training.

In June, CHIGO started the "2015 visiting programs in domestic market”.



KEY EVENTS AND RECOGNITION IN 2015

On July 10, 268 graduates of the year 2015 (phase Il trainee of "Sail Plan") officially joined
CHIGO.

July 21-26, CHIGO attended the 32nd Angola International Trade Fair with customized African
type air-conditioners and refrigerators.

In the afternoon of July 24, the former President of Tanzania, Mr. Ali Hassan Mwinyi and his wife,
visited CHIGO and the exhibition hall of CHIGO cloud air-conditioner. He praised that CHIGO's air
conditioners have been at the forefront
of the global in intelligent electrical home
appliances.

b5 -l " -
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In July, China Quality Certification Centre
and China Household Electric Appliance
Research Institute have jointly released
the first batch of authentication result for
national certified air-conditioner brand
with recognized comfort, and CHIGO was
listed as one of them.

In August, Mr. Li Xinghao, the Chairman and CEO of
CHIGO Holding, decided to step out and take personal
charge of CHIGO's sales business in domestic market.
He determined to lead CHIGO to “return to the top
three in the industry”.

e mi =m0
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On August 11, CHIGO and Suning signed a “Strategic
Cooperation Declaration of CHIGO and Suning”

in Suning headquarters. The two parties reached a
cooperative agreement targeting sales of 3 billion yuan
in refrigeration
year 2016.

In August, CHIGO won the 2015 — 2016 Air-conditioning
Industry Technical Contribution Award in 2015 China
Air-conditioning Industry Summit Forum. CHIGO Smart
King air-conditioner was named the 2015 - 2016 Air-
conditioning Industry Star.
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KEY EVENTS AND RECOGNITION IN 2015

On September 10, CHIGO participated in China (Guangdong)
International "Internet +" Expo.

On September 22, CHIGO held HAREREAMSTIA

2016 global business conference prishupsg v Splagopt iz
and “Intelligent Cloud + '
Ecosystem" press conference. At
the meeting, CHIGO announced to
establish the first air conditioner
"smart cloud +" ecosystem in

oM the industry. CHIGO

Smart King broke the

record with 58 intelligent cloud air-conditioning
functions and became the World’s most intelligent
air conditioner. Mr. Li Xinghao released business
strategies of the 2016 refrigeration year at the
meeting for the first time and stated to lead
CHIGO to "return to the top three in the industry"
explicitly, while achieving overall targeted sales
volume of 100 billion by 2020.

October 1-2, CHIGO air-conditioner attracted global attention
again by debuting in the Reuters Outdoor Display, the best
place for commercial exposure in New York Times Square. Thus,
CHIGO revealed the largest image show of Chinese enterprises
ever in New York Times Square.

On October 18, CCTV reported in the evening news that
CHIGO Smart King was the most eye-catching product among
the latest intelligent
products unveiled by household electrical appliance
enterprises at the 118th Canton Fair.

On October 21, Suning Tesco held its 3rd 020
Shopping Festival under the theme "unstoppable Lion".
Among various suppliers, CHIGO was honored "The
Most Growth Value Award" in Suning Tesco 020
Shopping Festival.
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KEY EVENTS AND RECOGNITION IN 2015
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In November, CHIGO achieved numerous honors and awards:
we were the first batch of enterprises ever awarded “China's
export quality and safety demonstration enterprises”; we
won the "2015 Advanced Enterprises for Quality Commercial
Service" and "National Advanced Enterprise Implementing
Excellence Performance Model"; and our Chairman and CEO
Mr. Li Xinghao was named "Top 10 Marketing Talents in
China" in the 2015 China Marketing Festival.

In November, CHIGO repeatedly won procurement tenders
from various provincial governments such as Guangdong and
Shandong, where CHIGO became the only successful enterprise
in the 5th centralized volume air conditioner procurement
project of 2015 in Guangdong Province, with turnover of more
than RMB5 million.

On November 23, the largest and most influential international fair of Middle East — Dubai
Big 5 Show opened at the Dubai World Trade Centre. CHIGO attend the show in Dubai with
customized cloud air-conditioners, household air-conditioners and central air-conditioners.
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KEY EVENTS AND RECOGNITION IN 2015

On December 3, led by Southern Metropolis daily, the
joint “2015 3C Innovation Awards Ceremony and Smart +
Summit Forum” launched by well-known national medias
were held in Guangzhou. CHIGO once again won the
“Technology and Product Innovation Award” with the new
intelligent CHIGO Smart King air-conditioner.

In December, CHIGO signed a purchase order with
Suning of 300,000 sets of smart cloud air-conditioner
and intelligent cloud artistic cabinet air-conditioners,
and built online strategic cooperation with GOME of
over RMB1 billion.

On December 4, the 2015”China Quality and Credible
Enterprise”awarding ceremony was held in the company.

On December 31, the 2015 “China’s export quality and
safety demonstration enterprises” awarding ceremony
was held in the company. CHIGO was among the first
batch of enterprises to won the award.

In the evening of December 29 & 30, CHIGO Group
held 2015 Advanced Recognition Gala & 2016 New
Year’s party at CHIGO Industrial Park respectively.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Revenue decreased by
15.8% in 2015

9,390.6 206.9

9,183.7

7,774.2

0 @ Revenue (RMB million)

- 2013 2014 2015

Government subsidies for energy-saving products (RMB million)

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN 34 33.5%

e Gross profit decreased by
33.5%

e Gross margin decreased from
17.4% to 13.7%

1,603.3

0 @ Revenue (RMB million)

- 2013 2014 2015

Government subsidies for energy-saving products (RMB million)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR AND NET LOSS MARGIN
11,001.8%

Due to the significant decreases in
revenue and gross profit, and the
provisions in respect of the possible

return of energy-saving subsidies and the 214.4
increase in selling and distribution costs . 23%
e Net loss increased by 1,001.8% 0.7)%

(60.4)
e Net loss margin was 8.6% for the year

(665.5)

0 @ nNet loss (RMB million)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

LOSS PER SHARE (LPS) AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE (DPS)

L WEEREA

¢ Net loss for the year increased
substantially

e Basic loss per share increased by 037

753.1% 4-

0 ——
e No final dividend was declared for © %6)
the year ended 31 December 2015
D0 Loss per share (RMB cents) (8.19)
@ ops i censy) 2013 2014 2015

TOTAL ASSETS AND NET ASSETS

* Non-current assets decreased by 2.0% and
current assets decreased by 9.8%

e Total consolidated assets decreased by 8.4%

e As the Group recorded a net loss for the year
Net assets decreased by 23.2%

0 @ nNon-current assets (RMB million)
[ ] Current assets (RMB million)

Net assets (RMB million)




OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

PRC AND OVERSEAS SALES

¢ PRC sales decreased sharply by 25.3% and amounted to 49.6% of the total revenue
e Overseas sales decreased slightly by 3.8% and amounted to 50.4% of the total revenue

4.3% 0.2%
%

41% 0.4%
4.2% A%

11.9%

22.6% 29.6%

e 4.4 million units of residential air- 200,000
conditioners sold and decreased
slightly by 2.9% 4,569,000

179,000

4,438,000

e 179,000 sets of commercial air-
conditioners sold and decreased by
10.5%

. . Commercial air-conditioning products (Sets)

. . Residential air-conditioning products (Units)

CHIGO HOLDING LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2015




OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR PRODUCTS TYPE

e Because of the decreases in the sales volume and average sales prices
Sales of residential air-conditioners decreased by 15.3% and accounted for 80.7% of the
total revenue
Revenue of commercial air-conditioners dropped slightly by 3.8% and contributed 11.5%
of the total revenue to the Group

e The volume of business, sales of air-conditioners parts and components decreased
sharply by 38.3%

e Sales of other products decreased significantly by 21.4%

6.5% 3.3%
5%

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE (ASP)

Due to the decreases in prices of the major
raw materials and keen price competition,

the ASP of the residential air-conditioning 4619 -_/. L

products decreased by 12.8%

e The ASP of the commercial air-conditioning
products increased by 7.6% as the Group
was able to adjust the ASP upwards

1,620 WS — s 1,413

. Residential air-conditioning products (RMB)

. Commercial air-conditioning products (RMB)




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Li Xinghao
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the”Board”) of directors (the”Directors”) of Chigo Holding Limited, | am pleased to
present the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the”Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

SUMMARY OF BUSINESS RESULTS

In 2015, as China’s economy entered the “new normal”, each industry faced all kinds of problems. The business
situation of the household appliance industry of China was particularly stern. On the one hand, the growth of
domestic macro-economy slowed down, on the other hand, the overseas market economy fluctuated significantly.
From the perspective of trends of global economy, Chinese economy and industry development, the age for the
high-speed growth of market scale had passed out of existence. Under the circumstances of market contraction
and insufficiency of market demand, the air-conditioner manufacturers undertook unprecedented pressure, plus
high inventory level in the industry, whilst the price war resulted in obvious decline of the average price of the air-
conditioner, both the sales volume and amount of air-conditioners have decreased which presented the weak state
of the air-conditioner market. Thus, in 2015, the industry operation was indeed hard.

At the bumpy time throughout the whole air-conditioning industry, within the predicament of keen market
competition for the air-conditioning industry, none of the air-conditioning enterprises were immune from it, and
the Group also needed to cope with severe economy and industry situation. For the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group recorded a decreased revenue by 15.8% to RMB 7.7 billion. Facing the decreased industry scale
and unsatisfactory macro-economy, the Group’s domestic sales followed the industry downward trend, leading
to a decline in sales volume, average price of products and gross profit. In terms of overseas sales, the Group
was still able to make unremitting efforts under the circumstance of continuous decrease of the industry export.
In 2015, the Group’s export sales volume only recorded a slight drop. Besides, leveraging high-tech production
and distinguished renowned production quality at home and abroad, the Group obtained the honor of “China
Export Quality Safety Demonstration Enterprise”, which marked the excellence of the Group among China export
enterprises, representing actual strength and advanced level of China export industry in the contemporary era and
future.

In 2015, the Commercial Team of the Group still had very outstanding performance, despite a slight drop in
revenue, the operational efficiency and gross profit continued to improve. This made an enormous contribution to
the Group.

In 2015, the Group's loss for the year further expanded. The Group recorded a loss for the year of approximately
RMB660 million representing a substantial year-on-year decline as compared with that of the previous year.
During the period under review, the Group’s consolidated net loss recorded a substantial increase, due to a
year-on-year decline in the revenue and gross profit of the Group resulting from the adverse factors including
the macroeconomic downturn in the PRC, the overall weak demand for air-conditioning products and intensive
competition of air-conditioning industry during the year, as well as the increase in consolidated net loss arising
from the one-off provision of RMB 200 million in total by the Group relating to its subsidiary, Guangdong

Chigo Air-conditioning Co., Limited, for the purpose of refunding the subsidies for its sale of energy-saving air-
conditioners, as requested by the Finance Bureau of Lishui Town, Nanhai, Foshan, PRC. The Group is actively
discussing with the related authorities through all kinds of ways expecting to properly solve the matter. In addition,
although the Group made dedicated effort in controlling the operational expense, but the increase in advertising
and promotion expenses still resulted in an increase in selling and distribution costs.



THE MORE THE DIFFICULT TIME, THE MORE THE OPPORTUNITIES

The short pain of the phased results decline arising from the transformation and upgrading is not strange for

the household appliance industry of China. In 2015, the results decline of Chigo indicates that, over the past

few years, with the continuous transformation of the sophisticated technology innovation, the high-end oriented
product research, three dimensional channels, especially by signing with the international movie star, Jackie Chan,
which energized the brand, and with an overall grasp on the smart cloud technology, Chigo has entered into the “term
of tackle difficulties” in terms of transformation and reform.

Transformation is not terrifying, being conservative and not changing past practices is what is dangerous. Looking
forward to the year of 2016, it will still be a changing year full of challenges and uncertainties. However, as an
enterprise being never afraid of difficulties, Chigo will capture opportunities and grow fast at each time when the
industry is in difficulties. The management believes that the more the difficult time, the more the opportunities.
Chigo’s strategy for 2016 will be “four enhancements”: brand enhancement, production enhancement, team
capacity enhancement and services enhancement. By adoption of the sustainable high-end brand strategy, we
will take advantage of the double weapons of “high-end+intelligence”, optimize production structure and further
improve the proportion of medium and high-end production, drive the brand to high-end, with the aim to sprint
towards being the top three in the industry. In addition, the Group will improve the operational efficiency, carry
out reforms on management by delayering, carry out the solution idea of “layer-by-layer leadership, everyone is
in charge, comprehensive data management”, shorten the decision-making process, timely mobilize resources,
and quickly respond to the market. All such efforts will be made for the benefit of the market and serving the
customers.

In 2016, | wish to take the lead by example, and lead our staff to join hands with our distributors, suppliers, to
serve the market, users and customers with the best products, platforms, and services, enabling us to record and
gradually improve the profit of the Company in the next year, and create value and interest for the shareholders
and partners of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers and
suppliers, banks and outstanding staff for their support and trust. The Group is confident in its future prospect and
hopes to make progress in joint efforts with all its stakeholders to bring about better results for Chigo.

Li Xinghao

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Foshan, 31 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development, manufacture and sale of air-conditioning products.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group was mainly derived from the sales of air-
conditioners and air-conditioner parts and components. The Group’s products were sold both in the PRC and
overseas markets.

Looking back on 2015, the air-conditioning industry
was facing a very difficult business environment.

In the global economic downturn and fluctuations,
whether domestic and overseas markets, there were
many changing factors that affect sales and profit
performance of the enterprises.

The Chinese air-conditioner market was affected

by the slowdown in macroeconomic development,
the fluctuations in the PRC real estate market and
capricious weather in 2015, resulting in the doldrums.
Due to weak consumer market demand, competition
among enterprises was very fierce, some companies in the industry adopted aggressive pricing strategy to alleviate
the pressure of their own inventory and a price war ensued. According to statistics, both the overall retail sales and
retail sales volume of the Chinese air-conditioner market in 2015 have recorded a year-on-year decline.

3




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As one of the leading enterprises in the PRC air-conditioning industry, the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2015 followed the trend of the industry to fall inevitably and recorded a remarkable drop
comparing to that of the year before. Moreover, stiff price competition in the domestic market had posed adverse
impact on the average selling and profitability of the Group’s domestic products.

As for exports of the Chinese air-conditioning products, although the situation was slightly better than the
domestic market, due to the impact of the economic downturn in the world’s major economies and the slowdown
of emerging market development, the annual cumulative amount and annual cumulative quantity of Chinese air-
conditioning products exports in 2015 fell year-on-year according to the Chinese customs statistics.

Although the scale of the Group’s export sales declined during the year ended 31 December 2015, its export
performance has been better than the industry and was ranked one of the top exporters in the year.

During the year, the overseas team of the Group achieved good sales performance in markets such as Middle East,
West Asia and North Africa. Whereas in Latin America, South Asia, Southeast Asia, the Group maintained a steady
growth in exports. On the other hand, due to local currency devaluation, exchange controls and fluctuation of the
local economy, the Group recorded different degrees of decline in exports to the emerging markets such as Brazil

and Russia.

In 2015, the operating scale of the Group’s commercial air-conditioners dropped slightly. However, since the
average selling price has improved, the commercial air-conditioning segment was able to maintain a stable total
sales.

CHIGO HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



OPERATION REVIEW
SALES FROM MAJOR PRODUCT GROUPS AND GROSS MARGINS

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014 Change
RMB % of RMB % of RMB Change
million Revenue million Revenue million %
Residential air-conditioners
— split type 5,756.1 74.0 7,031.4 76.2 -1,275.3 -18.1
— window type 487.2 6.3 339.3 3.7 +147.9 +43.6
— portable type 29.2 0.4 30.5 0.3 -1.3 -4.3
6,272.5 80.7 7,401.2 80.2 -1,128.7 -15.3
Commercial air-conditioners 890.3 11.5 925.4 10.0 -35.1 -3.8
Air-conditioners parts and
components 368.8 4.7 598.0 6.5 -229.2 -38.3
Others 242.6 3.1 308.6 3.3 -66.0 -21.4
7,774.2 100.0 9,233.2 100.0 -1,459.0 -15.8

Residential air-conditioning products are the major source of income of the Group and accounted for 80.7% of
the total revenue. As both the sales volume and average sales prices decreased, sales of residential air-conditioners
decreased by 15.3% during the year ended 31 December 2015. Although the average sales prices increased, sales
volume of commercial air-conditioning products of the Group decreased slightly year-on-year. Revenue derived
from commercial air-conditioners dropped slightly by 3.8% and contributed 11.5% of the total revenue to the
Group during the year.

The volume of business, sales of air-conditioner parts and components decreased sharply by 38.3% during the year
mainly due to a decline in overseas sales as a result of the economic slowdown in emerging markets. The Group's
other operating income such as resale of raw materials dropped in 2015, as a result, sales of other products
decreased significantly by 21.4% during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Due to the poor demand and stiff price competition in the domestic market, the average selling prices of the
residential air-conditioning products decreased during the year ended 31 December 2015. As a result, the gross
margin of the Group's residential air-conditioning products dropped to 11.3% for the reporting period from 16.8%
in 2014.

As the average selling prices of its commercial products increased, the Group’s commercial unit continued to
elevate its profit margin. The average gross margin of the Group’s commercial segment increased from 26.1% in
2014 to 28.8% during the year.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SALES FROM BRANDS AND ORIGINAL EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (“OEM")

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014 Change
RMB % of RMB % of RMB Change
million Revenue million Revenue million %
PRC sales
CHIGO brand 3,497.9 45.0 4,733.5 51.3 -1,235.6 -26.1
HYUNDAI brand 49.8 0.7 61.5 0.7 -11.7 -19.0
Air-conditioner parts and
components 81.6 1.0 60.3 0.6 +21.3 +35.3
Other products 227.3 2.9 306.8 3.3 -79.5 -25.9
3,856.6 49.6 5,162.1 55.9 -1,305.5 -25.3
Overseas sales
CHIGO brand 514.2 6.6 523.7 5.7 -9.5 -1.8
OEM 3,100.9 39.9 3,007.9 32.6 +93.0 +3.1
Air-conditioner parts and
components 287.2 3.7 537.7 5.8 -250.5 -46.6
Other products 15.3 0.2 1.8 0.0 +13.5 +750.0
3,917.6 50.4 4,071.1 44 1 -153.5 -3.8
7,774.2 100.0 9,233.2 100.0 -1,459.0 -15.8

Due to the poor sales of the domestic air-conditioner industry as a whole, air-conditioning products sold by the
Group in China under CHIGO brand decreased by 26.1% and accounted for 98.7% of the Group’s PRC sales
during the year ended 31 December 2015. Sales of parts and components in China increased by 35.3% after the
renegotiation of business cooperation strategy with customers in 2014. Due to the drop of other operating income,
sales of other products decreased by 25.9% during the reporting period.

Since the individual emerging markets has been affected by the macroeconomic environment, leading to decline
in sales performance in these regions, export under CHIGO brand recorded a slight drop of 1.8% during the year.
However, the drop in sales from CHIGO brand was offset by the increase of 3.1% from OEM sales. As a result,
CHIGO brand and OEM customers contributed 20.8% and 79.2% of the total overseas sales in 2015 respectively
(2014: 26.1% and 73.9% respectively).

CHIGO HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014 Change
RMB % of RMB % of RMB Change
million Revenue million Revenue million %
PRC
Household appliances retail
chain operators 1,342.4 17.3 1,265.1 13.7 +77.3 +6.1
Regional distributors 2,514.2 32.3 3,897.0 42.2 -1,382.8 -35.5
PRC Total 3,856.6 49.6 5,162.1 55.9 -1,305.5 -25.3
Overseas
Regional distributors 816.7 10.5 1,063.2 11.5 -246.5 -23.2
OEM manufacturers 3,100.9 39.9 3,007.9 32.6 +93.0 +3.1
Overseas Total 3,917.6 50.4 4,071.1 441 -153.5 -3.8
Total Revenue 7,774.2 100.0 9,233.2 100.0 -1,459.0 -15.8

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group strengthened the cooperation with the household appliances
retail chain operators, sales from these customers increased by 6.1% and contributed to 34.8% of the Group’s
PRC sales (2014: 24.5%). Sales generated from regional distributors decreased by 35.5% and accounted for 65.2%
of the PRC sales in 2015 (2014: 75.5%).

For the overseas markets, as own brand sales decreased during the reporting period, sales from regional distributors
dropped by 23.2%. However, the Group was able to get more sales from OEM customers to compensate the drop
in own brand sales and sales from overseas OEM customers increased by 3.1% in 2015. As such, approximately
79.2% and 20.8% (2014: 73.9% and 26.1%) of the overseas sales were distributed by OEM manufacturers and
overseas regional distributors respectively for the year ended 31 December 2015.



UNITS SOLD VOLUME AND AVERAGE SALES PRICES

Year ended 31 December Change

2015 2014 %

Residential air-conditioning products sold (‘000 units) 4,438 4,569 -2.9

Commercial air-conditioning products sold (‘000 sets) 179 200 -10.5
Average sales price — residential air-conditioning product

(per unit) RMB1,413 RMB1,620 -12.8

Average sales price — commercial air-conditioning
product (per set) RMB4,970 RMB4,619 +7.6

During the year ended 31 December 2015, sales volume of the Group’s residential air-conditioning products
dropped by 2.9% as compared to that of 2014. Sales volume of commercial air-conditioning products declined
year-on-year and recorded a decrease of 10.5% in 2015. In total, the Group sold approximately 4,617,000 units/

sets of air-conditioners within the reporting period.

Due to the decreases in prices of the major raw materials, average cost of sales of air-conditioning products
declined which in turn slowed down the growth in selling prices during the year ended 31 December 2015.
Furthermore, the price competition was very keen in the air-conditioning industry, as a result, the average selling
prices of the Group's residential air-conditioning products dropped by 12.8%. Despite the decreases in cost of sales
in 2015, the Group was able to adjust the average sales prices of commercial air-conditioning products upwards by

7.6%.
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BREAKDOWN OF COST OF GOODS SOLD

During the two years ended 31 December 2015, breakdown of the Group’s total cost of goods sold was shown as
follows:

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
% of % of Change

RMB Cost of RMB Cost of RMB Change
million goods sold million  goods sold million %

Raw materials, parts and

components:

Compressors 1,473.7 22.0 1,674.1 21.9 -200.4 -12.0
Copper 1,488.6 22.2 1,777.8 23.3 -289.2 -16.3
Plastic chips 626.7 9.3 680.1 8.9 -53.4 -7.9
Aluminum 279.5 4.2 371.4 4.9 -91.9 -24.7
Steel plates 523.0 7.8 770.9 10.1 -247.9 -32.2
Others (note) 1,464.1 21.8 1,442.2 18.9 +21.9 +1.5
Total 5,855.6 87.3 6,716.5 88.0 -860.9 -12.8
Direct labour cost 323.1 4.8 347.8 4.6 -24.7 -7.1
Utilities 61.5 0.9 73.7 1.0 -12.2 -16.6
Production cost 240.8 3.6 254.5 3.3 -13.7 -5.4
Others 227.4 3.4 237.4 3.1 -10.0 -4.2
Total cost of goods sold 6,708.4 100.0 7,629.9 100.0 -921.5 -12.1

Note: Others include many other miscellaneous parts and components used in production, such as electronic controller systems,
refrigerant, power cords, capacitors and other small parts.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, as the prices of major raw materials, such as copper and aluminum,
dropped substantially, the Group’s cost of major materials reduced by RMB860.9 million or 12.8%. Because of
the lower sales and production in China, direct labour cost decreased slightly by 7.1% during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Other cost of sales decreased slightly by 4.2% mainly attributed to the decrease in other cost, such as the cost of
raw material resold by the Group.



FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014 Change
RMB % of RMB % of RMB Change
million Revenue million Revenue million %
Geographic region
PRC sales 3,856.6 49.6 5,162.1 55.9 -1,305.5 -25.3
Asia (excluding PRC) 2,301.8 29.6 2,088.6 22.6 +213.2 +10.2
Americas 922.3 11.9 1,182.8 12.8 -260.5 -22.0
Africa 347.4 4.4 387.6 4.2 -40.2 -10.4
Europe 316.6 4.1 391.7 4.3 -75.1 -19.2
Oceania 29.5 0.4 20.4 0.2 +9.1 +44.6
Overseas sales 3,917.6 50.4 4,071.1 44 1 -153.5 -3.8
Total revenue 7,774.2 100.0 9,233.2 100.0 -1,459.0 -15.8

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s total revenue was approximately RMB7,774.2 million (2014
RMB9,233.2 million), representing a significant decrease of RMB1,459.0 million, or 15.8% as compared to the
corresponding period in 2014. The decrease was principally due to the weak demand for the domestic sales during
the year.

PRC SALES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s PRC sales decreased sharply by RMB1,305.5 million or 25.3%
to RMB3,856.6 million (2014: RMB5,162.1 million). As a result, domestic sales only accounted for 49.6% (2014:
55.9%) of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2015.

OVERSEAS SALES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s overseas sales decreased to RMB3,917.6 million (2014:
RMB4,071.1 million). The drop in overseas sales amounted to RMB153.5 million representing a year-on-year
decrease of 3.8%.

The Group saw decreases in sales in the Americas, Africa and Europe by 22.0%, 10.4% and 19.2% respectively.
However, the Group recorded satisfactory growths in sales in Asia (excluding PRC) of 10.2% and Oceania of 44.6%
respectively which offset the sales drop in the Americas, Africa and Europe. Among the overseas markets of the
Group, the main sources of revenue were Asia (excluding PRC) and the Americas which accounted for 29.6% and
11.9% (2014: 22.6% and 12.8% respectively) of the Group’s revenue during the year ended 31 December 2015,
respectively.

Since the Group’s sales in the PRC had recorded a greater decline, export sales increased to 50.4% (2014: 44.1%)
of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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COST OF GOODS SOLD
Due to the decrease in prices of major raw materials, parts and components, such as copper and aluminum, in

2015, cost of goods sold decreased to RMB6,708.4 million (2014: RMB7,629.9 million), representing a decrease of
RMB921.5 million or 12.1% as compared to that of 2014.

GROSS PROFIT
Due to the sharp decline in its revenue during the year which outweigh that of the cost of goods sold, the Group

recorded a gross profit of RMB1,065.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB1,603.3 million)
which represented a decrease of RMB537.6 million or 33.5%.

The Group’s gross margin dropped from 17.4% in 2014 to 13.7% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

In the difficult business environment with intense price competition, the Group’s gross margin of PRC sales
decreased significantly to 13.8% (2014: 21.2%) in 2015. On the other hand, exports benefitted from the
advantages of the strong US dollar and low cost of goods sold, and the gross margin of overseas sales of the
Group increased to 13.6% (2014: 12.5%) in 2015. Among the overseas sales regions, Asia (excluding PRC) and the
Americas recorded profit margin growth in 2015 among which, the Americas and Oceania contributed the most to
the profitability of the Group and achieved gross margins of 18.4% and 20.4% respectively.

OTHER INCOME

Other income which included mainly the interest income and non-operating income was RMB69.8 million (2014:
RMB54.2 million), representing an increase of RMB15.6 million or 28.8%.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS
The Group's selling and distribution costs (excluding equity-settled share based payments) increased to RMB841.5

million (2014: RMB829.9 million), representing an increase of RMB11.6 million or 1.4% for the year ended 31
December 2015. The increase was mainly due to increase in advertising and promotion expenses during the year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses (excluding equity-settled share based payments) of the Group remained stable

and amounted to RMB412.1 million (2014: RMB412.0 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
administrative expenses included mainly (i) salaries, benefits and social insurance charges relating to administrative
staff; (ii) amortization of lease payment; and (iii) depreciation expenses incurred during the year.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Group recorded equity-settled share based payments of RMB7.4 million (2014: RMB10.3 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2015 in relation to the share options granted by the Company to certain employees (including
directors) and customers in 2011. This non-cash expense decreased by RMB2.9 million or 28.2% during the year.



RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Research and development (“R&D") costs increased to RMB99.7 million (2014: RMB93.2 million) by 7.0% or
RMB6.5 million during the year. The increase was attributed to the increases in R&D investment in high-end
advanced air-conditioning products by the Group to implement its “the leader of high-end air-conditioning”
strategy.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses increased sharply by RMB178.4 million or 583.0% during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB30.6 million) and amounted to RMB209.0 million. The increase was mainly due to the provisions made by

the Group in respect of the possible return of certain subsidies for its sale of energy-saving air-conditioners. Other
expenses also included non-operating expenses and donations.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

The Group recorded other losses of RMB36.2 million (2014: other gains of RMB4.0 million) in 2015. The other
losses were mainly the allowance for doubtful debts incurred during the year.

NET GAIN IN FAIR VALUE CHANGES OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group had entered into certain foreign currency forward contracts to sell and buy US dollar with financial
institutes to hedge against part of its overseas sales income and US dollar loans respectively. The Group recorded
a net gain in fair value changes of approximately RMB3.6 million (2014 net loss of RMB32.0 million) under its
foreign currency forward contracts of the Group outstanding as at 31 December 2015.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group financed its working capital requirement through different arrangements including bank loans,
discounted bills receivable from customers to financial institutes, corporate debentures and finance leases. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the finance costs of the Group decreased by RMB75.8 million or 28.9% to
RMB186.2 million (2014: RMB262.0 million) due to lower average balance of bank borrowings.

TAXATION

Due to the increase in loss before taxation, the Group's tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2015
decreased by RMB39.3 million or 75.9% to RMB12.5 million (2014: RMB51.8 million).

LOSS FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss of RMB665.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB60.4 million), representing an increase of RMB605.1 million or 1,001.8% as compared to the
corresponding period in 2015. Since the Group had increased its loss substantially in the reporting period, the
Group’s net loss margin worsened to 8.6% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 0.7%).
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December

2015 2014 Change Change

RMB million RMB million RMB million %

Non-current assets 1,971.7 2,012.5 -40.8 -2.0
Current assets 8,250.1 9,149.5 -899.4 9.8
Current liabilities 7,787.8 7,979.2 -191.4 -2.4
Non-current liabilities 203.4 276.6 -73.2 -26.5
Net assets 2,230.6 2,906.3 -675.7 -23.2

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total consolidated assets decreased by RMB940.3 million or 8.4% to
RMB10,221.7 million (2014: RMB11,162.0 million). The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in value of
certain current assets such as trade and other receivables (decreased by RMB808.7 million) and pledged bank
deposits (decreased by RMB180.9 million), which was partly offset by the increase in inventories (increased by
RMB54.5 million). Total consolidated liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB7,991.2
million (31 December 2014: RMB8,255.8 million) and decreased by RMB264.6 million or 3.2%. The major liabilities
that decreased in the period were borrowings related to bills discounted with recourse (decreased by RMB434.6
million), short-term bank loans and long-term bank loans (decreased by RMB538.7 million and RMB141.5 million
respectively), which decrease was offset by the increases in trade and other payables and obligation under finance
lease (increased by RMB680.9 million and RMB162.6 million respectively).

As the Group recorded a net loss for the year, the Group’s net assets decreased by 23.2% or RMB675.7 million to
RMB2,230.6 million at the end of 2015 (2014: RMB2,906.3 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The funding policy of the Group is to secure sufficient funding to meet its working capital requirements and to
maintain smooth operations. The Group will also utilise different equity and debt instruments of different tenures
to obtain funding from the capital and financial markets in Hong Kong or in the PRC to achieve these objectives.

As the principal operation and production base of the Group are located in the PRC, financial resources are
centralised in the headquarters of the Group for efficient allocation. The Group also utilises different banking
services and products provided by the financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong to facilitate its cash
management and treasury activities.

The management, with the assistance of the Group’s finance and treasury departments, will closely monitor the
market conditions and the needs of the Group when implementing the Group’s funding and treasury policies.



As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s had current assets amounted to RMB8,250.1 million (2014: RMB9,149.5
million) and current liabilities amounted to RMB7,787.8 million (2014: RMB7,979.2 million). The Group’s working
capital decreased by RMB707.9 million or 60.5% from RMB1,170.3 million as at the end of 2014 to RMB462.4
million at the end of 2015. Despite the Group’s net current assets decreased, current ratio remained at 1.1 times
(2014: 1.1 times) as at 31 December 2015.

The Group experiences a certain degree of seasonal fluctuations in its air-conditioning business. Accordingly, the
Group's operations, including its sales, production, working capital and operating cashflow, are closely related to
seasonal factors. Demands for air-conditioners are usually higher during summer each year. In order to facilitate
production prior to the domestic peak season and to meet the overseas orders, the Group normally experiences
temporarily higher funding requirements in the middle and at the end of each year.

In recent years, the Group has made several investments in connection with the vertical integration of its
production line. Accordingly, debentures and borrowings of longer tenure matching with the project period were
sought for from the banks to serve this purpose.

In 2015, the Group had obtained funding for its business operations from different financial arrangements
including bank loans, debentures and finance lease. As at 31 December 2015, the balances of short-term and
long-term bank loans utilised by the Group were RMB1,402.2 million and nil respectively (2014: RMB1,940.9
million and RMB6.3 million respectively). Short-term and long-term bank loans decreased by RMB538.7 million and
RMB6.3 million during the year. The bank loans were used for working capital purposes, majority of the loans are
charged at fixed interest rates, repayable within one year, and are made and repaid in Renminbi. As at the end of
the reporting period, the Group had outstanding long-term debentures of approximately RMB207.6 million (2014:
RMB207.0 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group also enhanced its working capital position and obtained medium
term financing by entering into finance lease arrangements. As at the end of 2015, the Group had obligations
under finance leases of approximately RMB162.6 million (2014: Nil).

The gearing ratio (calculated as interest-bearing loans and other borrowings to total assets) of the Group decreased
and improved to 17.4% as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 20.6%) because the Group’s total borrowings decreased
substantially by RMB523.2 million during the year.

In order to reduce finance costs, the Group arranged some of its borrowings by obtaining bank loans which are
denominated in foreign currency and offered at lower lending rates during the year. Both short-term and long-
term borrowings had been used and provided the Group with a better mix of debt financing to fund its business
operation. During the year, due to the average balance of borrowing reduced, the Group decreased its finance cost
by 28.9% or RMB75.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 comparing to the same period in 2014.

Since the Group recorded a net loss for the year, the Group’s ability to meet finance costs, as indicated by interest
cover, dropped and deteriorated during the reporting period (2015: N/A, 2014: 1.0 times).

During the year, the Group entered into certain foreign currency forward contracts and derivative financial
instruments to hedge against part of its exposure on potential variability of foreign currency risk. The net financial
exposure of the Group to these foreign currency financial instruments was net liabilities of approximately RMB33.1
million (2014: RMB7.2 million) as at the year end.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Company had issued share capital of approximately RMB71.9 million and 8,434,178,000
shares in issue and all of the issued shares were ordinary shares. Since the Group recorded a net loss for the year,
the shareholders’ equity decreased to RMB2,230.6 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB2,906.3 million).

Other than the above, there were no other equity or debt instruments issued by the Company during the reporting
period and at the end of 2015.

CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014
RMB million RMB million
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (208.7) 499.2
Movements in working capital 1,347.0 631.4
Net cash from operating activities 1,138.3 1,130.6
Net cash used in investing activities (22.5) (260.8)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,162.1) (1,161.8)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (46.3) (292.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 418.2 464.5

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had operating cash outflows of RMB208.7 million (2014:
cash inflow of RMB499.2 million). During the year, the Group accelerated the receivables collection process and
bargained for better credit terms from the suppliers to generate additional RMB1,347.0 million for its operations.
As such, the Group generated net cash of RMB1,138.3 million (2014: RMB1,130.6 million) from its operating
activities for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group applied part of the cash generated amounting to RMB22.5 million for its investing activities in respect of
the future business expansion and development of the Group including mainly the amount of RMB120.9 million for
the acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, and RMB51.6 million for the payment of deposits in respect of
such acquisitions. The Group withdrew pledged bank deposits of net amount of RMB180.9 million and generated
additional RMB7.9 million from disposal of property, plant and equipment. As a result, the Group used net cash of
RMB22.5 million (2014: RMB260.8 million) in its investing activities in 2015.

The Group continued to reduce borrowings and used RMB1,162.1 million (2014: RMB1,161.8 million) for its
financing activities.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s cash balances decreased by RMB46.3 million during the year ended 31
December 2015 and bank balances and cash amounted to RMB418.2 million at the end of 2015 (2014: RMB464.5
million). Majority of the bank balances and cash were denominated in Renminbi and certain amounts were
denominated in US dollars, EURO and Hong Kong dollars.



MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS, SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had not made any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries and associated companies. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not hold any
significant investments.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, certain bank deposits and land use rights of the Group in an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB910.4 million (2014: RMB1,091.6 million) were pledged to certain banks for securing the
banking facilities granted to the Group.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately 50.4% of the Group's sales were denominated in
currencies other than Renminbi, predominantly the US dollar, whilst most of the costs and expenses incurred by the
Group were denominated in Renminbi. In this regard, the Group may be exposed to foreign currency risk. During
the reporting period, the Group had already entered into certain foreign currency forward contracts and derivative
financial instruments to hedge against foreign exchange risk. As the exchange rate of Renminbi against the US
dollars fluctuated during the reporting period, the Group incurred losses on some of the foreign currency forward
contracts upon settlement. However, the Directors believe that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was
not significant.

During and as at the end of the reporting period, most of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated
in Renminbi. The Directors believe that the Group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuations is minimal in this
aspect.

The management of the Group will monitor foreign currency exposure from time to time and will consider further
hedging should the need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately RMB98.6 million
(2014: approximately RMB77.1 million). The Group expects that the capital commitments will be funded by internal
resources and/or external finance from financial institutions.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

CHIGO HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 13,084 employees (2014: 13,511 employees). The employees of the
Group are remunerated based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry practices. Compensation
packages are reviewed on a yearly basis. The Group also provides its employees with welfare benefits including
medical care, meal subsidies, education subsidies and housing etc.

In order to attract, motivate and retain high calibre personnel, the Group also has a share option scheme in place
in which the employees and directors of the Group are entitled to participate.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS

The Group expects that the business environment in 2016 will remain challenging. Under the current situation,
global and domestic macroeconomic conditions are still full of uncertainty. In addition, exchange rate fluctuations
and national policies will influence the market demand and consumer sentiment for air-conditioning products.

Combined with market observations, the domestic market in 2016 is not expected to be optimistic. As competition
will remain keen, the Group will adopt flexible marketing strategy to respond to the market rapidly.

As for overseas markets, developed markets in Europe, North America are anticipated to have a minimal growth.
On the other hand, the emerging markets will be at a standstill and remain low.

Market demand for commercial air-conditioning products keeps growing and remains strong. Commercial air-
conditioning products is one of the growth points of the air-conditioning industry. The Group expects its sales of
commercial air-conditioning products to be steady in 2016.

In order to improve its operating performance and respond to the difficult operating environment, the Group has
deployed the following in the coming year:

1. BRAND PROMOTION:

To use high-end air-conditioning-based strategy as market positioning. The Group will take advantage of its
smart and intelligent air-conditioning technology to promote “Chigo e Leader of high-end air-conditioning”.

2. TAP THE MARKET:

To strengthen and enhance the cooperation with household appliances retail chain operators; and to explore
new business opportunities and establish new sales platforms with e-commerce providers, government
procurement.

3. PRODUCT UPGRADE:

The Group believes that excellent product quality and innovative products will be the key to market success
and growth of customer base. As such, the Group will further strengthen its research and development.



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LI XINGHAO

Mr. Li, aged 61, is the founder of the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director on 24 April 2006. Mr. Li
is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is primarily responsible for the formulation of
the Group’s development strategies, as well as supervising the Group’s overall business and operation management.
He is one of the founders of Nanhai Chigo Factory, the predecessor of Guangdong Chigo, established in 1994

and has over 22 years of experience in the air-conditioning industry. Mr. Li graduated from the Party School of the
Central Committee of C.P.C. (AR ER) in 2000. He obtained a masters degree in Western Economics Studies
from Nankai University (B AZ) in July 2004. Mr. Li is currently the Chairman of Guangdong Credit Association (&
REEADS).

DR. ZHENG ZUYI

Dr. Zheng, aged 60, is the vice Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the board of Guangdong Chigo.
He joined the Group on 1 October 2005 and was appointed as an executive Director on 4 January 2012. He is
responsible for the management of the board of directors of Guangdong Chigo. Dr. Zheng received a doctorate
degree in engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (2738 T K £2) in December 1994
and completed the post-doctorate research studies in Tsinghua University in May 1996. Before joining the Group,
Dr. Zheng was the senior technology consultant and head of the research institute of Gree Electric Appliances,
Inc. BRETE N EERMNBRAE], a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from
June 1996 to August 2001. He was the general manager of an air-conditioning company of Guangdong Kelon
Electrical Holdings Co., Ltd. (EREIEERMMHER A F], a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) between September 2001 and September 2005
and resigned in October 2005 to join the Group.

DR. DING XIAOJIANG

Dr. Ding, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 15 February 2008. He joined

the Group in January 1998 and has held various positions as supervisor of the technology department and the
procurement department, head of commercial department, the chief engineer and the General Manager of

the Refrigeration Equipment Division of the Group. Dr. Ding graduated from Nanjing University of Aeronautics

and Astronautics (B RAMZEMAAZ) (formerly known as FIRMZEET) in 1985, received a masters degree in
engineering from the same university in 1988 and a doctorate degree in engineering from Chongging University (&
BERE) in 1992. He joined Guangdong Meidi Refrigerating Research Centre (BREMRMHDER A A2 AIITHT) as
a senior engineer from November 1992 to May 1995.

MR. HUANG XINGKE

Mr. Huang, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 6 September 2010. He graduated
from the University of International Business and Economics majoring in Accounting in July 2004. Mr. Huang
Xingke further completed postgraduate courses in Modern Industrial Management and Advanced Production at
Tsinghua University and in Business Administration (MBA) at Sun Yat-sen University in October 2006 and November
2008, respectively. Mr. Huang Xingke joined the Group in May 2002 and has more than 14 years experience in
accounting, production management and procurement management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang Xingke
worked as an accountant of Foshan Taiyang Packaging Limited (LU AFE B AR A A]) from 2000 to May 2002.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. WAN JUNCHU

Mr. Wan, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 26 August 2008. Mr. Wan had
been working as a part-time chief editor of China Business Update (/1 BI#& & Y3 s54L) from January 2005 to
December 2005, and assistant to the secretary of China Association for Quality Promotion (FEIE 28 E21T{RES)
since July 1999. He had conducted researches on famous Chinese brands and published more than three books on
management including brand management.

MR. ZHANG XIAOMING

Mr. Zhang, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 26 August 2008. He graduated
from South China Normal University (£ AT #3A22) majoring in economic and management in August 1992. He
has over 37 years of working experience in the household electrical appliance industry in the PRC and held various
positions including senior chief economist and general manager. Mr. Zhang has also participated in the research,
planning and formulation of the development strategy in the household electrical appliance industry in Guangdong.
He also organized and participated in work for management guidance in the household electrical appliances

and hardware industries in Guangdong. Since 2003, Mr. Zhang has been appointed as the panel member of

the Guangdong Top Brand accreditation group (B & &8 EMABTEHZKMAKE). Since 2005, he has been
appointed as a member of the expert group of special funds for SME development project in Guangdong Province
(BREH/NOERRZBEELERHERMKE), and a panel member of the expert group of Famous Trademarks in
Guangdong Province and participated in assessment and promotion of Famous Trademarks in Guangdong Province
and China Famous Trademark. He is the managing vice chairman of Guangdong Household Electrical Appliances
Trade Association (ERA XA BRTERD).

MR. FU XIAOSI

Mr. Fu, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 26 August 2008. He graduated from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEHFEHE K Z) (formerly known as 2R T 2x) in July 1986. He
obtained a bachelor degree in economics from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (7 3 B 4 BUA K22
formerly known as FE I KE) in 1999. He qualified as an accountant in 1991. Mr. Fu obtained the relevant
qualification as a registered accountant from the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the PRC in
1994. He has been promoted as a senior accountant while working at China State Ship Building Corporation (¥
BlfaAl TE 422 7)) in 1997. Mr. Fu completed the training course for independent non-executive directors of the
listed companies organised by Fudan University (8 B X2) in 2002. From November 2000 to May 2006, he worked
at Zhong Qin Wan Xin Accounting Firm (F#1&E{E€5BIE#FT) and held positions including senior manager,
department manager, vice chief accountant and senior partner, responsible for auditing financial statements for
various listed companies. During the period between May 2006 and November 2012, he was the chief accountant
of Tri-Ring Group (ZIR£&E). Currently, he is the deputy general manager and financial controller of (Hubei
Jiuzhiyang Infrared System Company Limited (#i3b A 2 FALINRF IR BR A R]) and is an external supervisor
of CSSC Offshore & Marine Engineering (Group) Company Limited (FF 58 /F E2B5 SR D AR A a)), a company
whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Fu is also the independent director of Hubei Xingfa
Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. (#1tH 2t TERE D BRAR], a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and Xiang Yang Automobile Bearing Co., Ltd. (EE /RSB #ARMD AR AT, a company whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).



SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. CHENG JIAN

Mr. Cheng, aged 43, is the director and vice president of Guangdong Chigo. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in
charge of the Quality Centre and Overseas Marketing Department. Mr. Cheng graduated and obtained a bachelor
degree in refrigeration engineering from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1995. After graduating from the university, he
worked in Mitsubishi Electric Compressor Company (=2 B #[EE 482 7)) and had been sent to Japan for training for
a year. Thereafter, he joined a well-known air-conditioning corporation in China. Mr. Cheng has ample experience
in development and management, and sales of air-conditioning products. After joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had
been assigned to various senior positions of commercial air-conditioning business department and quality control
centre of the Group.

MR. LIN KUN

Mr. Lin, aged 44, is the director and vice president of Guangdong Chigo. He joined the Group in October 2005. Mr.
Lin graduated from Chongging University in thermal engineering in June 1994 and was awarded a master degree in
thermal engineering by Chongging University in June 1999. In July 2002, he obtained the qualification of refrigeration
and cryogenic technology engineer. Mr. Lin further obtained the qualification of ¥ T #ll/2 % & T2 &4 TH2E0 (Senior
Engineer of light industrial refrigerating equipment engineering) in March 2011. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lin had
been working in various senior positions in products design in Research Centre Gree Electric Appliances of Zhuhai,
Guangdong (ERIx/EE N B0 E R A RIAFFLAT) and Kelon Electrical Corporation (B2 E 28/ 7)) respectively. He
has extensive experience in air-conditioning technology. Since Mr. Lin had joined the Group in 2005, he held different
senior positions as Deputy Chief Engineer and Head of Technical Centre of Guangdong Chigo.

MR. JIN SHANDONG

Mr. Jin, aged 51, is the director, vice president and financial controller of Guangdong Chigo. He joined the Group
in September 2005 and is responsible for the financial management of Guangdong Chigo. Mr. Jin graduated from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law ({F BB & BUERE formerly known as FEEBF A& K 2) in industrial
economics and received a master degree in Business Administration at Southwest Jiaotong University in 2013. He
also has the qualifications as a senior accountant and registered accountant in the PRC. From December 1999 to
May 2004, Mr. Jin worked at Zhong Qin Wan Xin Accounting Firm (FE)EE & :TAIERFT) as project manager and
was responsible for auditing listed companies. During May 2004 and September 2005, he worked in Nanhai motor
factory of Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd as the head of finance department and was in charge of the overall financial
management.

MR. LEUNG HON MAN

Mr. Leung, aged 49, joined the Company as the Chief Financial Officer since 18 December 2007 and was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 26 August 2008. He has over 17 years of experience in
company management, accounting and company secretarial matters. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. Mr. Leung received a
Professional Diploma in Business (Banking) at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1990 and a master degree in
Business Administration at Andrews University in 1996 and a master degree in Accounting at Central Queensland
University in 1999. From 1990 to 1994, he had experience working as a senior officer in the Hong Kong Branch of
the Kwangtung Provincial Bank, which is now known as Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited after consolidation.
From May 1994 to August 2000, he had experience working as a finance manager in Soundwill Holdings Limited (878),
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Since 2000, he has worked in Sanyuan Group
Limited, a company formerly listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, where he held various positions
including company secretary, financial controller and executive director. Mr. Leung is an independent non-executive
director of Guangdong Join-Share Financing Guarantee Investment Co., Ltd., (1543) (EXRF AR ER BRI ER
AR A T]), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining good corporate governance standard with a strong
emphasis on integrity, efficiency, transparency and accountability to enhance shareholders’ welfare.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted and applied its corporate governance practices which are in line with the code
provisions contained in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code except for the deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code.

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Li Xinghao acted both as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the
“CEQ") of the Company.

The responsibilities of Chairman and CEO of the Company have been clearly established and set out in writing.
Chairman of the Board will be responsible for effective running of the Board and the management of the Board'’s
affairs. CEO will be primarily responsible for the formulation of the Group’s business and development strategies.

Mr. Li is the founder of the Group and has over 22 years of experience in the air-conditioning industry.

The Directors believe that Mr. Li is a good leader to lead the Board and vesting the roles of Chairman and CEO in
the same person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution of
long-term business strategies. As such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the Company.

The Directors will continue to review the effectiveness of the corporate governance structure of the Group and
assess whether changes, including the separation of the roles of Chairman and CEO, are necessary.

CODE PROVISION A.6.7

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. An independent non-executive director of the Company was unable to attend the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2015 (2015 AGM") due to illness.

Pursuant to the Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board should invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination committees to attend the annual general meeting. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee was unable to attend the 2015 AGM due to illness. Accordingly, he appointed another
member of the Nomination Committee as his representative to attend the 2015 AGM.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The following are the
current members of the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xinghao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Zheng Zuyi (Vice Chairman)

Dr. Ding Xiaojiang

Mr. Huang Xingke

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wan Junchu
Mr. Zhang Xiaoming
Mr. Fu Xiaosi

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 34 to 36 of this report.

FUNCTION OF THE BOARD

The business of the Group are conducted and managed by the Board. The Board is responsible for the overall
management of the business, strategic development and significant policies and transactions of the Group.

The management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
various board committees including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set out in the CG code and had adopted
the terms of reference in relation to its corporate governance functions (“Corporate Governance Functions”) on 29
March 2012.

During the year under review, the Board had performed the following Corporate Governance Functions:

(@) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and the
Company Secretary;

() reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) reviewed and monitored the Model Code for Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers; and

reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RELATIONSHIP OF THE BOARD MEMBERS

There is no family relationship, nor any financial, business, or other material or relevant relationships, among the
Directors and between each of the Directors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015 and the date of this report, Chigo Group Holding Limited owned 4,322,234,210
shares, representing approximately 51.25% of shareholding in the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
following Director of the Company is a director or employee of such substantial shareholder:

Name of Director Relationship with substantial shareholder

Li Xinghao Director of Chigo Group Holding Limited

NUMBER OF BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meetings and committee meetings are conducted on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as required.
The articles of association of the Company allow the Directors to participate in any meeting of the Board by means
of a conference telephone or other communications equipment. Before the Board or committee meetings, members
of the Board will receive information about the businesses and matters to be discussed.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Board meetings and committee meetings were held. The Directors
also attended the general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2015. The attendance record of each of the
Directors is set out below:

Number of Number of
Number of Audit Remuneration Nomination Number of
Number of Committee Committee Committee general
board meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings

attended/held attended/held attended/held attended/held attended/held

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xinghao 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
Dr. Zheng Zuyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Dr. Ding Xiaojiang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0N
Mr. Huang Xingke 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0N

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wan Junchu 4/4 112 11 0/0 11
Mr. Zhang Xiaoming 4/4 212 n 0/0 01
Mr. Fu Xiaosi 4/4 212 7n 0/0 11




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (“CPD")

All Directors are encouraged to participate in CPD to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
year under review, Directors had participated in different CPD and each Directors provided their records of training
to the Company respectively. A summary of training received by Directors during the year is as follows:

Directors Types of CPD

Li Xinghao

Zheng Zuyi

Ding Xiaojiang

Huang Xingke

Wan Junchu

Zhang Xiaoming

Fu Xiaosi 2,

w A W W ww -

Notes: 1. Participating as speaker/presenter on corporate management and other relevant topics.
2. Attending seminars on directors’ training, corporate governance and Listing Rules.
3. Attending seminars and business delegation relating to director training, professional performance training and
corporate management.
4. Reading related journals or/and learning materials.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage for directors’ and officers’ liabilities incurred by them in
discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Li Xinghao acted both as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company which deviated from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code and is explained in the paragraph headed
“Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code"” above.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement by
rotation. No independent non-executive Director has served the Company for more than nine years.

Mr. Wan Junchu, Mr. Zhang Xiaoming and Mr. Fu Xiaosi had been re-elected at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 June 2015.

The independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration was determined by the Company with regard to their
experience, performance, duties and the prevailing market conditions. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the total remuneration paid to the independent non-executive Directors was approximately RMB384,000 including
directors’ fees.
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ADOPTION OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors (the “Own Code”). The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code and the Own Code. All the Directors have confirmed their compliance during the
year with required standards set out in the Model Code and the Own Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees (the “Board Committees”), namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee to assist the Board in discharging its duties and
responsibilities. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and are able
to obtain outside independent professional advice in connection with their duties at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 19 June 2009 with written terms of reference (revised and
adopted on 29 March 2012) in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group.

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Fu Xiaosi, Mr. Zhang
Xiaoming and Mr. Wan Junchu. Mr. Fu Xiaosi, being the Director with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee had:

o held two committee meetings and reviewed the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2014 and interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2015 respectively, financial and accounting
policies and practices and relevant disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules with the management
and the external auditor of the Company;

o reviewed with the management the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems;
o attended a meeting with the external auditor without executive Board members present and discussed about

the nature and scope of the audit before the audit commences; and
o approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee plans to conduct meetings at least twice a year.




REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 19 June 2009 with written terms of reference (revised
and adopted on 29 March 2012) in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policies and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee comprises the three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wan Junchu,
Mr. Fu Xiaosi and Mr. Zhang Xiaoming. Mr. Wan Junchu is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

A Remuneration Committee meeting in relation to the general review of the remuneration policies of the
Group was held during the year ended 31 December 2015. The Remuneration Committee had also assessed the
performance of executive directors, approved the terms of executive directors’ service contracts.

The Remuneration Committee plans to conduct meetings at least once a year.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 19 June 2009 with written terms of reference (revised
and adopted on 29 March 2012) in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duty of the Nomination Committee
is to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and senior management.

The Nomination Committee comprises the three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang
Xiaoming, Mr. Fu Xiaosi and Mr. Wan Junchu. Mr. Zhang Xiaoming is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no Nomination Committee meeting was held. The Nomination
Committee has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 28 August 2013 in compliance with the code
provision A.5.6 of the CG Code. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Company’s Board
to ensure that the Board has the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee will conduct meetings when it is necessary.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Leung Hon Man. The Company Secretary is responsible for assisting
the Board by ensuring good information flow and communications within the Board as well as Board policy and
procedures are followed. During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Leung had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statement of the Group in accordance
with statutory requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to
ensure that the financial statements for the Group are published in a timely manner. The Directors’ and auditors’
responsibilities in respect of the financial statements are set out on page 63 in this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the Group and has the responsibility for reviewing its
effectiveness including financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal control system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets.

An Internal Audit Department has been established by the Group to carry out independent evaluations of its
operating units. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access to the Group’s operating units as well as all
records, properties and personnel relevant to any function under review. Independent review on the operating and
financial control of the Group has been conducted by the Internal Audit Department on an on-going basis. The
Internal Audit Department reports its findings and irregularities (if any) and makes recommendations to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee had reviewed the internal control system of the
Group with the management. The Board will continue to review the system and procedures from time to time to
maintain a high standard of internal control and will make appropriate changes to the internal control system, if
necessary.

INVESTORS RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from the shareholders of the Company. The Board
highly respects the shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates the shareholders to make suggestions
to the Company. On top of the regular members’ meetings to be held yearly, the Company has adopted a
Shareholder’s Communication Policy and also established different channels, including the corporate website

with updated Company’s news and information, corporate email and public relations department, to (i) promote
effective communication between the Company and its shareholders; (ii) release the latest news, information and
announcements of the Company in a timely manner; and (iii) handle shareholders’ enquiries and suggestions.

During the year, the Company actively attended different investment conferences organised by various investment

banks, arranged investors’ tours to visit the headquarters of the Group and conducted telephone conferences with
financial analysts, fund managers and investors with an aim to enhancing the transparency of the Group's business
and investors relations.




SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Under the Articles of Association, the Shareholder’s Communication Policy and procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director adopted by the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid

up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a director of the Company at a
general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) at (i) the Head Office and Principal Place of
Business of the Company in Hong Kong or (ii) the office of the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited.

The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (ii) must be signed by the shareholder concerned and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her

willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal information.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of general
meeting and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR MAKING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

If the Shareholders and the investors make a request for the Company’s information, the Company will provide
such information provided that it is publicly available.

Shareholders and the investors may communicate with the Company through designated contacts, email addresses
and enquiry lines of the Company.
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The following are the contact information of the Company and the share registrar:

THE COMPANY — HONG KONG
Unit 08, 19th Floor

Greenfield Tower (South Tower)
Concordia Plaza

No.1 Science Museum Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Please contact our Company Secretary at:
Telephone: (852) 2997 7449
Facsimile: (852) 2997 7446
Email: ir@china-chigo.com.hk

THE COMPANY - PRC

Shengli Industrial District, Lishui Town
Nanhai, Foshan, Guangdong

China

Post Code: 528244

Please contact our Investment and Securities Department at:

Telephone: (86) 757 8878 3289
Facsimile: (86) 757 8562 8012

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITORS’" REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HKD2,860,000 and HKD1,162,000 respectively. The non-audit services
provided during the period were interim financial statements review and taxation services.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development, manufacture and sale of air-conditioning products.
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income statement on page 65 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

A review of the business of the Group, a discussion and analysis, including the analysis using financial key
performance indicators of the Group’s performance during the year and the material factors underlying its results
and financial position are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
respectively from pages 16 to 18 and pages 19 to 33 of this Annual Report. The future development in the Group’s
business is discussed in the “Outlook and Future Plans” from page 33 of this Annual Report and throughout this
Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In the normal course of business, the Group’s operations, business performance, financial position and prospects
may be exposed to the following risks and uncertainties:—

1. ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND MARKET RISK

The impact of economic conditions on consumer confidence and buying habits would affect the sales,
revenue and results of the Group. The economic growth or decline in respective geographical markets

that affected consumer spending on air-conditioning products would also affect the Group’s business. The
Group continues to implement its strategies to develop and strengthen penetration of different geographical
markets thereby reducing its dependency on specific markets.

2. CREDIT RISK

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, short-term investments,
restricted deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, derivative
financial instruments, borrowings related to bills discounted with recourse, debentures, bank loans and
obligations under finance lease.

Details of the Group’s credit risk are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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3. FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has sales and certain transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies, hence there are
exposures to foreign currency risk. The Group also has certain monetary items that denominated in foreign
currencies which have exposed the Group to foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

4. INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities, mainly interest-bearing pledged bank deposits, bank balances and other borrowings at
prevailing market interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed rate bank loans
subject to negotiations at each renewal date. The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

Details of the Group’s interest rate risk are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

5. RISK RELATING TO OUTSTANDING FOREIGN CURRENCY CONTRACTS

The Group was exposed to other price risk arising from the outstanding foreign currency contracts with
predetermined exercisable period and maturity dates. The fair value of these foreign currency contracts was
calculated using the forward pricing model and option pricing model.

Details of the Group’s other price risk are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

6. COMMODITIES RISK

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of commodities used as raw materials in the
manufacturing process, primarily copper and aluminium. While the Group may be able to partially offset
these fluctuations with a flexible pricing policy, the Group bears the risks of fluctuation in the costs of these
materials. Accordingly, rising prices for commodities has affected and is expected to continue to affect the
Group's cost of goods sold in the form of higher raw materials prices. Other the other hand, decreases in
prices for commodities may affect the value of the Group’s inventories. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to commodities risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant commodities risk should the need arise.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to promote its business growth and long-term sustainable development, improve the
brand and market status, and also attaches great importance to the social responsibility of the enterprise, and
complies with laws and regulations, as well as pays close attention to the interests and opinions of different
stakeholders including shareholders, clients, suppliers, employees and community, etc. In this regard, the Group has
formulated a series of measures, and through communication with the stakeholders from time to time, has revised
and optimized the measures on environment and enterprise social responsibility of the Group, with the view of

improving the competitiveness of the Group and making contribution to the society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
1. Emission Level

As a large-scale air-conditioner manufacturer, the Group has always placed emphasis on environmental
protection and has taken the initiatives to comply with regulations and policies of the PRC on relevant
aspects as well as relevant standard. The Group also encourages the employees to improve the awareness of
environmental protection, and protect the environment.

The Group owns an integrated production system and ancillary production facilities for various spare and
accessory parts, it is inevitable for the Group to produce some industrial wastes and emissions in the course
of its production. However, the Group is subject to the environmental protection laws and regulations
promulgated by the PRC government. During the process of production, the Group has complied with
applicable national and municipal environmental protection regulations applicable to disposal of waste
water, gaseous emissions, metal and plastic waste, and industrial waste which are produced during the
production process. The Group has implemented a set of waste treatment procedures in its production
facilities during the production process. Therefore, the Group’s manufacturing process does not generate
significant chemical wastes, waste water or other industrial wastes. The impact of the Group’s production
process on the environment is limited.

The Group has devised and carried out an environmental protection plan by establishing its own internal
environmental monitoring and survey procedural manual, pursuant to which the relevant manufacturing
department would be responsible for the collection of waste water/gas emission data and report to the
Quality Control Committee. The Group's Quality Control Committee closely monitors the Group’s production
process. The Quality Control Committee conducts random inspection for the relevant departments’
operational control on a regular basis and a full-scale inspection of the same on a quarterly basis. In order
to address any potential pollution problem in a timely manner. The Group has taken measures to ensure
that industrial wastes and by-products produced as a result of the operations are properly disposed of in
order to minimize adverse effects to the environment.

The Group has also established an environmental protection team who is responsible for formulating and
carrying out the measures complied with the environment standard. Such team members generally have
many years of experience in environmental compliance.

2. Resource Usage

The Group is an enterprise who attaches importance to the environment concept, apart from actively
cooperating with the national policies, designing, producing and promoting high energy saving air-
conditioner production, we also advocate energy saving and effectively resource usage to reduce waste
inside the Group. As a production integration enterprise, the Group can use and recycle the raw materials
more effectively during the production process, and can also save resource usage for transportation,etc.
From the office aspect, the Group also sets out guidance to remind and encourage employees to properly
use the resources, try to reduce the consumption of water, electricity and paper in order to support
environmental protection.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

1.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has implemented a set of quality control standards for its air-conditioners manufacturing. In the
procurement of raw materials, the Group has set up and implemented an “Suppliers Quality Management
Manual” requiring that the raw material suppliers comply with the directives to ensure achieving the
standard of the Group.

Before selecting and sourcing raw materials, parts and components from external suppliers, the Group would
inspect their facilities and require the external suppliers to supply raw materials, parts and components to
check that they meet with the recognized environmental standards.

Product Quality Control and Warranty

The Group'’s air-conditioners are sold all over the world, therefore, the Group attaches great importance
to the design and quality of its products. Generally, the Group provides free post-sale repair services for its
products for six years and free replacement of the major components of its products. As mentioned above,
the Group carries out strict quality control standards for air-conditioner manufacturing, has implemented

a comprehensive quality control system covering major stages of production, and received several quality
management and environmental management system standard certifications.

To ensure ongoing compliance with the accreditation requirements, all the Group’s production lines are
monitored at various stages to ensure the quality in the Group’s products manufactured. The Group also
implemented a set of quality control manuals, giving guidance and instructions for the relevant production
process regarding the quality control procedures, including the production monitoring procurement
procedure, defect control, product lines quality control, and safety testing. In addition, the Group has
established a Quality Control Committee, which is headed by the senior management of the Group. The
Quiality Control Committee conducts yearly reviews and assessments over the quality control procedures

in the Group’s production process. Should any of the Group's production processes be found not to be in
compliance with the requirements for accreditation, action would be taken to rectify the problems.

The Group also owns the experienced and devoted staff who are in charge of day-to-day implementation
of the quality control procedures throughout the production process from inspection of raw materials, parts
and components to examination of finished products, and report to the Quality Control Committee.

Customer Services and Opinions

The Group's customer services department of the Group’s head office has overall responsibility for
formulating the Group’s customer services standards, and the Group sets up several customer services
centers in different places of China to be responsible for monitoring the customer services points managed
by the Group, its regional distributor and re-sellers, and collecting market intelligence. Apart from the above
mentioned customer services, the Group also has 24 hour telephone hot-lines to respond to end-users’
inquiries and listen to customer opinions.

Given the increasing popularity of the internet and mobile communication devices in recent years, the
Group also invests and develops multi-type electronic platforms, including internet, Cloud and mobile
telephone applications, etc., combining with the intelligent air-conditioners product of the Group to widen
the channels of contact and communication with the client base and social mass.
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4. Corruption Prevention

As a responsible enterprise, the Group ensures that our management and staff are honest and incorruptible.
In view of this, at the time of recruitment entry of the employees, the Group stipulates under the provisions
of the terms that staff shall not be in any terms or forms to ask for or receive the interest from the business
transaction companies, while adopting a clear guideline regarding the transfer of benefits. Such approaches
ensure that our staff abides by relevant laws and guidelines and performs their duties with credibility.

The Group stringently monitors the conduct of our staff and prohibits them from corrupting for personal
interests and providing or receiving cash and other valuables to or from customers and suppliers.

WORK ENVIRONMENT
1. Appointment Based on Merit

The Group believe that successful implementation of the growth and business strategies of the Group relies
on a team of experienced, motivated and well-trained management and employees at all levels. The Group
is an equal opportunity employer and encourages diversity regardless of age, gender, marital status, religious
belief and race. A Board Diversity Policy, with the aim of enhancing the quality of the Board’s performance
by diversity, was adopted in 28 August 2013.

2. Health and Safety

The Group gives priority for providing an appropriate, safe and convenient working environment to
employees to fully ensure the health of the employees.

The Group has formulated a series of codes of practice for safety at work, comprised of codes for sanitation
and clean, machine operation, smoking prohibition and fire prevention, hazardous materials handling, anti-
typhoon and storm, as well as emergency treatment, etc. The Group provides training for code of practice
of safety at work and requires employees strictly comply with the code.

The government authorities keeps regular monitoring on the Group’s working environmental. Rectification
will be made by the Group in accordance with the monitoring results.

3. Relationship with staff

In order to enhance the morale and productivity of the employees, employees are remunerated based

on their performance, experience and prevailing industry practices. Compensation policies and packages
of management staff and functional head are being also be awarded to employees based on internal
performance evaluation. The Group also provides its employees with other welfare benefits including
medical care, meal subsidies, education subsidies, housing, transportation and other retirement benefits in
accordance with applicable regulations and the internal policies of the Group.

The Group invests in continuing education and training programmes for the management staff and other
employees with a view to upgrade their skills and knowledge. These training courses include internal courses
run by the Group’s management and external courses provided by professional trainers. They range from
technical training to the production staff, to financial and administrative training to the management staff.
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In accordance with applicable PRC laws and regulations, as well as compulsory requirements of the local
authorities where the branch of the Group is located, the Group participates in a pension contribution plan,
a work-related injury insurance plan, an unemployment insurance plan, a medical insurance plan and an
accident insurance plan for the employees.

As required by the relevant PRC regulations, the Group has a workers’ union which protects employees’
rights and welfare benefits, encourages employee participation in management decisions, and assists in
mediating disputes between the Group and individual employees. The constitution and operation of such
workers’ union are in compliance with relevant PRC regulations. The Group has not experienced any strike
or other labour disturbance which has interfered with the Group’s operations, and the Directors believe that
the Group has good relationships with its employees.

Information relating to the Group's corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 37 to 45.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 132.

SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no new shares had been issued in relation to the exercise of share
options.

As at 31 December 2015 and the date of this report, the Company had issued share capital of approximately
RMB71.9 million and 8,434,178,000 shares in issue. All of the issued shares were ordinary shares.

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year under review, no debentures had been issued. At the end of 2015, the Group had long-term
debentures of approximately RMB207.6 million outstanding, among which, RMB155.5 million was repayable within
one year.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 68 to 69.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the Company did not have any reserve available for cash distribution to the Shareholders
of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company amounting to
RMB938,187,000 (2014: RMB938,187,000) is available for distribution or paying dividends to the Company’s
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum of association and the articles of association (the “Articles”)
and provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xinghao
Dr. Zheng Zuyi
Dr. Ding Xiaojiang
Mr. Huang Xingke

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Junchu
Mr. Zhang Xiaoming
Mr. Fu Xiaosi

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 34 to 36 of this report.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles, each of Mr. Huang Xingke, Mr. Li Xinghao and Dr. Zheng Zuyi will
retire from office by rotation at the upcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”) and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHIGO HOLDING LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2015




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE ORDINARY SHARES OF HKDO0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY

Number of
issued ordinary Approximate
shares held as at percentage of
Name of Director Capacity 31 December 2015 shareholding
(note 1)
Mr. Li Xinghao (note 2) Held by controlled corporation 4,322,234,210 51.25
Dr. Zheng Zuyi Beneficial owner 4,632,000 0.05
Dr. Ding Xiaojiang Beneficial owner 6,530,750 0.08
Mr. Huang Xingke Beneficial owner 161,000 0.00
4,333,557,960 51.38
Notes:
1. Based on 8,434,178,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2015.
2. Mr. Li Xinghao beneficially owns approximately 99.46% of the issued share capital of Chigo Group Holding Limited which
beneficially owns 4,322,234,210 ordinary shares of the Company.
LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
Number of
issued ordinary Approximate
Name of shares held as at percentage of
Director Associated Corporation Capacity 31 December 2015 shareholding

Mr. Li Xinghao Chigo Group Holding Limited Beneficial owner 9,946.1036 99.46




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Number of
share options Number of
held as at underlying
Name of Director Capacity 31 December 2015 shares
Mr. Li Xinghao Beneficial owner 8,000,000 8,000,000
Dr. Zheng Zuyi Beneficial owner 50,000,000 50,000,000
Dr. Ding Xiaojiang Beneficial owner 10,000,000 10,000,000
Mr. Huang Xingke Beneficial owner 25,000,000 25,000,000
Mr. Wan Junchu Beneficial owner 1,000,000 1,000,000
Mr. Zhang Xiaoming Beneficial owner 1,000,000 1,000,000
Mr. Fu Xiaosi Beneficial owner 1,000,000 1,000,000
96,000,000 96,000,000

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive nor their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporation as at 31
December 2015.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or the controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors had interests in any business (including any interests acquired after listing)
which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Particulars of the related party transaction are disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Foshan Nahai Lishui Zhongya Restaurant (the “Restaurant”), a restaurant controlled by Mr. Li Xinghao who is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and the Company had entered into an agreement to
provide restaurant services to the Group. During the year, the Group paid messing expenses to the Restaurant. The
related party transaction is regarded as a continuing connected transaction under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing
Rules which is exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other connected transaction and/or continuing connected transaction during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group were entered into or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the written resolution of the shareholders on 19 June
2009. Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options and the underlying shares during the
year:

Underlying shares exercisable under
the share options

Exercise  Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding
Price  beginning of during at end of
Exercise period (HKD) the year the year the year

Category 1: Directors
Li Xinghao 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 5,600,000 - 5,600,000
8,000,000 - 8,000,000
Zheng Zuyi 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
50,000,000 - 50,000,000
Ding Xiaojiang 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 7,000,000 - 7,000,000
10,000,000 - 10,000,000
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Underlying shares exercisable under

the share options

Exercise  Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding

Price  beginning of during at end of

Exercise period (HKD) the year the year the year

Huang Xingke 2013.9.23 -2018.9.22 0.45 7,500,000 - 7,500,000

2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 17,500,000 - 17,500,000

25,000,000 - 25,000,000

Wan Junchu 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 300,000 - 300,000

2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 700,000 - 700,000

1,000,000 - 1,000,000

Zhang Xiaoming 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 300,000 - 300,000

2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 700,000 - 700,000

1,000,000 - 1,000,000

Fu Xiaosi 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 300,000 - 300,000

2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 700,000 - 700,000

1,000,000 - 1,000,000

Sub-total 96,000,000 - 96,000,000
Category 2: Employees

Employees 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 173,958,000 (10,380,000) 163,578,000

2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 405,992,000 (24,220,000) 381,772,000

Sub-total 579,950,000 (34,600,000) 545,350,000
Category 3: Customers

Customers 2013.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 3,466,000 (534,000) 2,932,000

2016.9.23 - 2018.9.22 0.45 8,184,000 (1,266,000) 6,918,000

Sub-total 11,650,000 (1,800,000) 9,850,000

Total 687,600,000 (36,400,000) 651,200,000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the
Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests and short position in the
issued share capital of the Company.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN THE ORDINARY SHARES OF HKD0.01 EACH OF THE
COMPANY

Number of Approximate

issued ordinary percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding

(note 1)

Chigo Group Holding Limited Beneficial owner 4,322,234,210 51.25

(note 2)
Skyworth TV Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 425,000,000 5.04
Notes:

1. Based on 8,434,178,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2015.

2. Chigo Group Holding Limited is owned as to approximately 99.46% by Mr. Li Xinghao, a Director of the Company and as

to approximately 0.54% by Mr. Li Longyi who is the son of the elder brother of Mr. Li Xinghao.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group'’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.




PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in the form of contributions to Hong Kong's Mandatory Provident
Funds and the China statutory public welfare fund.

The Mandatory Provident Fund scheme is operated by an independent service provider. Mandatory contributions
are made by both the employer and the employees at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant income, up to a limit
of HKD30,000 (HKD25,000 prior to 1 June 2014). The Group's contributions will be fully and immediately vested in
the employees’ accounts as their accrued benefits in the scheme.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefits scheme contributions charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income amounted to RMB66,941,000 (2014: RMB70,244,000)

Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, as far as the Group is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that successful implementation of the growth and business strategies of the Group relies

on a team of experienced, motivated and well-trained management and employees at all levels. Members of the
senior management team have extensive operating expertise and in-depth understanding of the air-conditioners
products market, or the retail and logistics industries generally. The Group pays close attention to the interests and
opinions of employees and communicates with the employees from time to time. The Group has also formulated

a series of measures set out in the section headed ‘Environmental, social and governance — Work Environment —
Relationship with staff’ in this report. The Group has not experienced any strike or other labour disturbance which
has interfered with the Group’s operations, and the Directors believe that the Group has good relationships with
its employees.

The Group has an extensive sales and distribution network in the PRC and it sells its products through independent
regional distributors and household appliances retail chain operators. For overseas sales of the Group’s products,
the Group sells its products to overseas distributors and air-conditioning products manufacturers in the other Asian
countries, the European market, the American market, the Middle East and African markets and other markets. The
Group maintains long-term relationships with a majority of the regional distributors and household appliances retail
chain operators which had been in cooperation with the Group for many years.

A majority of the raw materials, parts and components used by the Group in its manufacture of air-conditioners
were sourced from suppliers based in the PRC. Suppliers are chosen based on a number of criteria, including the
quality of the raw materials supplied, stability of supply in the past, delivery time, pricing of the raw materials

as well as the financial and industrial status of the supplier. The Group’s sourcing strategy is to avoid heavily
relying on any single supplier and seek to source the same type of raw material, part or component from different
suppliers so as to ensure stable supply and cost competitiveness. Since the Group has maintained long-term and
stable relationships with its major suppliers, and the Group usually sources the same type of raw material, part and
component from multiple suppliers, the Group believes that it has good relationships with its suppliers.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF FOR SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the year ended 31 December
2015 and the date of this report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the shares of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2015.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movement in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out in notes 28 to
30 to the financial statements.

BORROWING COSTS CAPITALISATION

There was no borrowing costs capitalised by the Group during the year (2014: nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed below, during the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)).

On 22 June 2015, the Company, together with Chigo Group Holding Limited (“Chigo BVI”) and Mr. Li Xinghao (“Mr.
Li”), entered into a subscription agreement with Chance Talent Management Limited (the “Investor”), pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and the Investor has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, a 7%
fixed coupon convertible bond (the “Convertible Bond”) in the principal amount of up to US$30,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$232,554,000).

Chigo BVI is the controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 51.25% of the total issued share

capital of the Company and Mr. Li is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li
beneficially owns approximately 99.46% of the issued share capital of Chigo BVI.
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The Directors are of the view that the issue of the Convertible Bond represents a good opportunity for the
Company to raise funds to strengthen its financial position since the issue of the Convertible Bond will not have
an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding of the existing Shareholders and the Convertible Bond bears a
relatively low interest rate in comparison with the prevailing market interest rate for external borrowings.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bond are summarised as follows. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcement (the “Announcement”) dated 22 June 2015. Unless otherwise specified, all capitalised terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as ascribed to them in the Announcement.

1. ISSUER
The Company will be the issuer of the Convertible Bond.

2. PRINCIPAL AMOUNT

The principal amount of the Convertible Bond to be issued to the Investor shall be notified by the
Company to the Investor at least five Business Days prior to the Closing Date and shall not be more than
US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$232,554,000).

3. BOND SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The Bond Subscription Price shall be 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bond to be issued to
the Investor.

4. INTEREST RATE
The Convertible Bond shall bear interest on the outstanding principal amount at the rate of 7% per annum.

Except that interest in respect of the entire principal amount of the Convertible Bond for the first six
calendar months of the term shall be payable in advance on the Issue Date, interest on the outstanding
principal amount thereafter shall be payable by the Company to the holder of the Convertible Bond in
arrears every six calendar months.

5. MATURITY DATE
The Convertible Bond shall mature on the date fully on the second anniversary of the Issue Date.

6. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

Closing of the subscription for the Convertible Bond is conditional upon the fulfillment (or waiver) of the
following conditions precedent:

(@) the representations and warranties of the Company and the Guarantors set out in the Subscription
Agreement being true, complete, and accurate in all respects and not misleading in any respect
and the Company and the Guarantors having performed all their obligations under the Subscription
Agreement which are required to be performed on or before the Closing Date;

(b) the Investor being satisfied with the results of the relevant due diligence with respect to the Group;

(c) the Investor having obtained all necessary internal approvals in respect of the subscription for the
Convertible Bond;

(d) each of the Company and the Guarantors having, to the extent applicable, complied with all
requirements under the applicable laws and its constitutional documents (where applicable) necessary
for the validity and enforceability of the Transaction Documents and the issue of the Convertible
Bond, and having duly completed all requisite procedural requirements and obtained all consents
and approvals in connection with the signing of the Transaction Documents and the issue of the
Convertible Bond that is reasonably capable of being completed or obtained prior to the Closing;
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(e) there being no governmental authority or other person that has (i) requested any information
in connection with or instituted or threatened any action or investigation to restrain, prohibit,
or otherwise challenge the subscription for the Convertible Bond by the Investor, or the other
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents to which the Investor is a party; (ii)
threatened to take any action as a result of or in anticipation of the subscription for the Convertible
Bond by the Investor, or the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents to which
the Investor and/or its respective nominees is a party; or (iii) proposed or enacted any applicable laws
which would prohibit, restrict or delay the subscription for the Convertible Bond by the Investor and/
or its respective nominees, or the other transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents to
which the Investor is a party and/or the operation of any Group Company after the Closing;

(f) there being no suspension of the trading of the Shares on the Stock Exchange for any reason during
the period from the date of the Subscription Agreement to the Closing Date (save for the purposes
of clearing an announcement in respect of (i) the issue of the Convertible Bond pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, or (ii) any transaction which is of a routine nature resulting in a temporary
suspension of trading for not more than three consecutive trading days) or cessation of trading of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange for any reason;

(9) the approval for the listing of and the permission to deal in the Conversion Shares issuable upon
conversion of the Convertible Bond (subject to conditions satisfactory to the Investor and the
Company as may be imposed by the Stock Exchange) on the Stock Exchange having been obtained;

(h) Chigo BVI having opened the Securities Account;

(i) as at the date of the Subscription Agreement and the Closing Date, there being no material adverse
change in the principal business, operations, properties, conditions (financial or otherwise), or
prospects of the Group taken as a whole, nor the happening of events which may have a material
adverse effect;

() there having been (i) no change, or development involving a prospective change, in national or
international monetary, financial, political, or economic conditions or currency exchange rates or
foreign exchange controls, (i) no general moratorium on commercial banking activities in the Cayman
Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong, or the People’s Republic of China by any governmental
authority, (iii) no outbreak or escalation of hostilities or act of terrorism, and which, with respect to
any of (i) to (iii) above, individually or in aggregate, is or is likely to have a material adverse effect, or
(iv) no suspension or material limitation of trading in securities generally on the Stock Exchange;

(k) no event having occurred or circumstance arising which, had the Convertible Bond already been
issued, could reasonably be expected to constitute an Event of Default;

() the Consolidated Net Asset Value of the Group being not less than RMB2,700,000,000; and

(m)  Mr. Li remaining as the chairman of the Board and the single largest shareholder of the Company
(whether or not through any of his controlled companies).

Subject to and upon compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the Bondholder shall have the right

to convert all or any part (which shall be integral multiple of US$1,000,000) of the principal amount of the
Convertible Bond into Shares at any time on and after the Issue Date up to the close of business on the Maturity
Date. The Conversion Shares, when issued and fully paid, will rank pari passu in all respects with the existing issued
Shares as at the date of allotment.

The Company announced on 24 August 2015 that as the Conditions Precedent were not fulfilled on 21 August
2015, the Subscription Agreement has lapsed and the proposed issue of the Convertible Bond will not be @

proceeded with.




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked agreement was subsisted at
the end of the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to approximately RMB2,762,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group's sales to the five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total
revenue for the year.

During the year, the Group's purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's total purchases for the year.
EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no subsequent events after the reporting period.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 7 June 2016 to Wednesday, 8 June 2016 (both
dates inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 June 2016.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 have been audited by
the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Empire Room I, 1/F Empire Hotel, 33 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 8 June 2016 at 3:00 p.m.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the management of the Group and all the staff for their
hard work and dedication, as well as its shareholders, business partners, bankers and auditors for their support to
the Group throughout the period.

On behalf of the Board
Li Xinghao
Chairman

Foshan, 31 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHIGO HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chigo Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 131, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statement that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Revenue 7,774,156 9,233,191
Cost of goods sold (6,708,438) (7,629,877)
Gross profit 1,065,718 1,603,314
Other income 69,751 54,227
Selling and distribution costs
— equity-settled share based payments (1,620) (2,262)
— other selling and distribution costs (841,549) (829,922)
Administrative expenses
— equity-settled share based payments (5,794) (7,994)
— other administrative expenses (412,094) (412,030)
Research and development costs (99,723) (93,217)
Other expenses 8 (209,030) (30,575)
Other gains and losses (36,177) 3,975
Net gain (loss) in fair value changes on foreign
currency forward contracts 3,638 (32,046)
Finance costs 9 (186,169) (262,042)
Loss before taxation 10 (653,049) (8,572)
Taxation 12 (12,483) (51,807)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive
expense for the year (665,532) (60,379)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive
expense for the year attributable to:
— owners of the Company (690,473) (81,039)
— non-controlling interests 24,941 20,660
(665,532) (60,379)
Loss per share 13
— Basic and diluted (8.19) cents (0.96) cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2015

2015 2014
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,469,012 1,498,581
Land use rights 15 210,016 215,394
Intangible assets 16 733 1,083
Prepaid lease payments 17 213,598 226,624
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 51,551 37,726
Available-for-sale investments 18 20,000 20,000
Deferred tax assets 19 6,756 13,085
1,971,666 2,012,493
Current assets
Inventories 20 1,835,328 1,780,851
Trade and other receivables 21 4,983,817 5,792,561
Land use rights 15 5,378 5,378
Prepaid lease payments 17 16,700 16,653
Taxation recoverable 8,792 9,021
Derivative financial instruments 22 - 2,818
Short-term investments 23 40,000 -
Restricted deposits 24 45,000 -
Pledged bank deposits 24 896,853 1,077,745
Bank balances and cash 24 418,197 464,502
8,250,065 9,149,529
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 4,809,187 4,128,367
Warranty provision 26 17,078 25,641
Taxation payable 155,518 156,450
Derivative financial instruments 22 23,723 6,091
Borrowings related to bills discounted with recourse 27 1,139,440 1,574,021
Current portion of long-term debentures 28 155,500 -
Short-term bank loans 29 1,402,183 1,940,861
Current portion of long-term bank loans 29 6,250 147,736
Obligations under finance leases 30 78,822 -
7,787,701 7,979,167
Net current assets 462,364 1,170,362
O Total assets less current liabilities 2,434,030 3,182,855
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2015

2015 2014
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current liabilities
Government grants 31 36,192 37,480
Long-term debentures 28 52,121 207,021
Long-term bank loans 29 - 6,250
Obligations under finance leases 30 83,753 =
Derivative financial instruments 22 9,405 3,877
Deferred tax liabilities 19 21,937 21,937
203,408 276,565
Net assets 2,230,622 2,906,290

Capital and reserves

Share capital 32 71,906 71,906
Reserves 2,099,327 2,782,386
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2,171,233 2,854,292
Non-controlling interests 59,389 51,998
Total equity 2,230,622 2,906,290

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 131 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 31 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI XINGHAO ZHENG ZUYI
CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Statutory Attributable
Share Share surplus to owners Non-
Share Share Special compensation options reserve  Retained of the controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve fund profitt  Company interests Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)

At 1 January 2014 71,906 938,187 (26,408) 63,535 49,742 218520 1,609,593 2,925,075 44838 2969913

Recognition of equity-
settled share based

payments - - - - 10,256 - - 10,256 - 10,256
Distribution to

non-controlling

shareholders (Note d) - - - - - - - - (13,500) (13,500)
Transfers - - - - - 5,050 (5,050) - - -

= = = = 10,256 5,050 (5,050) 10,256 (13,500) (3,244)

(Loss) profit for the
year and total
comprehensive
(expense) income for
the year - - - - -

(81,039) (81,039) 20,660 (60,379)

At 31 December 2014 71,906 938,187 (26,408) 63,535 59,998 223570 1,523504 2,854,292 51,998 2,906,290

Capital contribution

from non-controlling

interests of a

subsidiary - - - - - - - - 450 450
Recognition of equity-

settled share based

payments - - - - 7414 - - 7,414
Distribution to

non-controlling

7414

shareholders (Note ) - - - - - - - - (18,000) (18,000)

Transfers - - - - - 12,738 (12,738) - - -
- - - - 7414 12,738 (12,738) 7414 (17,550) (10,136)

(Loss) profit for the

year and total

comprehensive

(expense) income for

the year - - - - - - (690,473)  (690,473) 24941 (665,532)
At 31 December 2015 71,906 938,187 (26,408) 63,535 67,412 236,308 820293 2,171,233 59,389 2,230,622
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Notes:

(@)

(d)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid for the acquisition of the entire interest in E&
E=ZFABMR2AR] (Guangdong Chigo Air-Conditioning Co., Ltd.) (“Guangdong Chigo”) and the then paid-in capital of
Guangdong Chigo upon group reorganisation in 2006.

Share compensation reserve represents

(i) the difference of fair value of certain shares of ER &= ZEFRM BR AT (Guangdong Chigo Air-Conditioning
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.), the predecessor of Guangdong Chigo, transferred to the Group’s certain employees by the
shareholders, Messrs. Li Xinghao and Li Longyi and the consideration paid by the employees in obtaining those
shares; and

(ii) the fair value of shares of the Company given by the Company’s controlling shareholder, Mr. Li Xinghao, at nil
consideration, to the Group’s employees and to certain customers of the Group, as reward for their past services
and loyalty to the Group.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China (the “PRC"), the
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund which is non-distributable.
Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation of the statutory financial statements of the PRC
subsidiaries and the allocation basis are decided by its Board of Directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up its prior year losses, if any, and can be applied for conversion into capital by means of capitalisation
issue.

Amount represents dividend paid by a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
NOTE RMB’'000 RMB’000
Operating activities
Loss before taxation (653,049) (8,572)
Adjustments for:
Interest income (50,419) (30,847)
Interest expenses 186,169 262,042
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 175,714 149,396
Impairment losses recognised in respect of goodwill - 9,857
Amortisation of intangible assets 350 345
Amortisation of government grants (1,288) (1,288)
Amortisation of land use rights 5,378 5,378
Release of prepaid lease payments 17,251 16,872
Write-off/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,582 216
Net (gain) loss in fair value changes on foreign
currency forward contracts (3,638) 32,046
Provision for warranty 29,939 29,967
Write down on inventories 10,814 20,752
Allowance for doubtful debts 88,259 36,277
Recovery of doubtful debts (26,171) (33,475)
Equity-settled share based payments 7,414 10,256
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (208,695) 499,222
(Increase) decrease in inventories (65,291) 493,134
Decrease in trade and other receivables 746,656 130,719
Change in derivative financial instruments 29,616 34,581
Increase in trade and other payables 681,421 31,031
Decrease in warranty provision (38,502) (31,188)
Cash generated from operations 1,145,205 1,157,499
Taxation paid (16,863) (30,872)
Taxation refunded 10,005 3,949
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,138,347 1,130,576
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
Investing activities
Placement of pledged bank deposits (2,343,453) (2,187,888)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (120,936) (198,393)
Prepaid lease payments paid (4,272) (64,711)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (51,551) (37,726)
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment - (20,000)
Purchase of short-term investments (40,000) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary 34 - (9,836)
Purchase of intangible assets - (236)
Placement of restricted deposits (45,000) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2,524,345 2,222,024
Interest received 50,419 30,847
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,935 5,067
Net cash used in investing activities (22,513) (260,852)
Financing activities
Bank loans raised 3,441,232 4,816,681
Proceeds from issue of debentures - 50,000
Contribution from non-controlling interests of a subsidiary 450 -
Proceeds from sale and lease back arrangement 199,990 -
Interest paid (186,169) (259,256)
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders (18,000) (13,500)
Expenses incurred in connection with the issue of debentures - (363)
Borrowings from bills discounted with recourse 2,706,915 4,089,561
Repayment of borrowings related to bills discounted with recourse (3,141,496) (3,932,396)
Repayment of bank loans (4,127,646) (5,912,457)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (37.,415) -
Net cash used in financing activities (1,162,139) (1,161,730)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (46,305) (292,0006)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 464,502 756,508
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, represented by
bank balances and cash 418,197 464,502
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands. Its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” to the annual report. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Chigo Group
Holding Limited (the “Chigo Group”), a company which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
ultimate controlling party of Chigo Group is Mr. Li Xinghao.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 8

The amendments to HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” require entities to disclose judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria set out in paragraph 12 of HKFRS 8. The Group has
aggregated several operating segments into a single operating segment based on the aggregation criteria set
out in paragraph 12 of HKFRS 8 and made the required disclosures in note 7 to the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

The application of the other amendments has had no other impact on the disclosures or amounts recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 27

Financial instruments?
Revenue from contracts with customers?
Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations'
Disclosure initiative'
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation’
Agriculture: Bearer plants'
Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture?
Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception'
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle'
Equity method in separate financial statements'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets. Regarding the Group’s financial
assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

Apart from HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation
of accounts and directors’ reports and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new requirements. Comparative information in respect

of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements based on the new requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed under the
predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in
these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments which are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting polices set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement

date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired

or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at
the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in

the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types

of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed

at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39 with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of
the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGU") (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and title have passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property,
plant and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The cost of buildings is depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired lease term of the land which the
buildings are located or their estimated useful lives of 8 to 30 years after the date of completion.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of other property, plant and equipment, using the straight
line method, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 6 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the
lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Patents and trademarks

Purchased patents and trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over its estimated useful economic
life, starting from the time when the patent is available for use. The estimated useful lives and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on
a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified into financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale investment. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financing assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and

of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, restricted deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unguoted equity instruments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. They are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of them, the estimated future cash flows of
loans and receivables have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments on significant prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 days
to 180 days and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference

between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the impairment loss is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities at
FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and

of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings related to bills discounted with recourse, bank loans,
debentures and trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount but to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of

a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows where the effect of the time value of money is material.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees of the Company

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligations so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they

are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Sale and lease back resulting in a finance lease

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount of the asset is not immediately recognised as income by the Group. Instead, it is deferred and
amortised over the lease term. If the fair value at the time of a sales and leaseback transaction is less than
the carrying amount of the asset, no adjustment is necessary unless there has been an impairment in value,
in which case the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements

are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. To the extent the
allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease are stated at
cost and released over the lease term on a straight line basis.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

Government grants and subsidies are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants and subsidies related to depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets. Government grants and subsidies that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable and are reported separately as “other income”.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, government-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF"”) are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of

the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies detailed in note 3, management has made the
following estimation that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

WARRANTY OBLIGATION

The Group provides free repairing services for its products and free replacement of the major components
of its products for 3 to 6 years after sales.

The costs of the warranty obligation under which the Group agrees to remedy defects in its products

are accrued at the time the related sales are recognised. Provision for warranty is accrued based on the
estimated costs of fulfilling the total obligation. The costs are estimated by the management based on
past experience. The assumptions used to estimate the warranty provision are reviewed periodically in light
of actual results. When a material defect is subsequently tested and identified, further warranty provision
may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of warranty provision is RMB17,078,000 (2014:
RMB25,641,000). Details of the movements are disclosed in note 26.

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES

The directors estimate the net realisable value of inventories based primarily on the latest market prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance on obsolete and slow moving items to write off or write down inventories to their
net realisable values. Where the expectation on the net realisable value is lower than the cost, an additional
write-off or write-down may arise.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
RMB3,060,534,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB96,679,000 (2014: RMB3,425,207,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB34,591,000).
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4, KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
INCOME TAXES

There are certain non-deductible expenses for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially estimated, such differences will impact the current income tax and deferred income tax in
the period during which such a determination is made.

No deferred tax assets have been recognised on unused tax losses and certain deductible temporary
differences arising from the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The reliability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual profits generated are more
than expected, a material deferred tax assets would be recognised in profit or loss for the period. Details of
the tax losses for the year ended 31 December 2015 are disclosed in note 19.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners of the Company through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans, debentures, borrowings related to bills discounted
with recourse, net of pledged bank deposits, restricted deposits, and bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly. The Group considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues of the Company as well as the raising of bank and
other borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 6,097,700 7,097,119
Available-for-sale investments 20,000 20,000

Fair value through profit or loss
— Held for trading - 2,818
— Designated as at FVTPL 40,000 -

6,157,700 7,119,937

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost 6,859,194 7,552,847
Fair value through profit or loss — held for trading 33,128 9,968
Obligations under finance leases 162,575 -

7,054,897 7,562,815

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, short-term investments,
restricted deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, derivative
financial instruments, borrowings related to bills discounted with recourse, debentures, bank loans and
obligations under finance lease. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposure to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

CREDIT RISK

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. Furthermore, the Group has applied export insurance to minimise the credit risks
arising from overseas customers. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

6
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
CREDIT RISK (Continued)

The credit risk on bank deposits and bank balances is limited as such amounts are placed in banks with
good reputation.

The Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from the failure to discharge of obligation by the
counterparties in foreign currency contracts. However, the directors of the Company consider such risk is
minimal as those contracts were entered with banks with good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers which spread across
diverse industries and geographical locations.

MARKET RISK
Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain transactions that denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 50% (2014: 44%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entity making the sales, mainly in United States dollars whilst all
of the costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional currency. The Group also has certain monetary
items that denominated in foreign currencies which have exposed the Group to foreign currency risk. The
carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end

of each reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2015, the Group has entered into certain foreign currency contracts. The management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2015 2014
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
United States dollars (“USD") 1,246,460 128,183 1,477,980 642,397
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") 2,978 - 1,887 -
EURO 39,119 - 40,291 -
Great Britain Pounds (“GBP") - - 2 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group mainly exposes to currencies of USD, HKD and EURO. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items, including the trade and
other receivables, restricted bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, borrowings related to
bills discounted with recourse, bank loans, debentures and adjusts their translation at the year end for a

5% change in foreign currency rates. A negative number indicates an increase in loss for the year ended 31
December 2015 (increase in loss for the year ended 31 December 2014) where the RMB strengthens against
the relevant currencies. There would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss for the year ended 31
December 2015 (loss for the year ended 31 December 2014) where the RMB weakens against the relevant
currencies.

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

USD (54,236) (40,629)
HKD (151) (87)
EURO (2,229) (2,021)

Details of the Group’s exposure in respect of the foreign currency contracts are set out in other price risk
disclosed below.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly interest bearing pledged bank deposits, bank balances and variable rate
bank loans at prevailing market interest rates. The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
debentures and borrowings related to discounted bills with recourse, of which are subjected to negotiations
at each renewal date. The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for interest
bearing pledged bank deposits, bank balances and variable rate bank loans and assumed that the amount
of assets outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

If interest benchmark rates on pledged bank deposits, bank balances and variable rate bank loans had been
50 basis points higher and all other variables were held constant, the potential effect on profit/loss for the
year is as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000

Decrease (increase) in loss for the year
PBOC savings deposit rate 6,575 7,712
LIBOR (641) (3,212)
PBOC lending rate (755) (643)

There will be an equal and opposite impact on the loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 (loss for the
year ended 31 December 2014) where there had been 50 basis points lower.

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to other price risk arising from the outstanding foreign currency contracts with
predetermined exercisable period and maturity dates. The fair value of these foreign currency contracts
was calculated using the forward pricing model and option pricing model. Details of these foreign currency
contracts are set out in note 22.

The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding foreign currency contracts as at the end of the reporting
period and adjust at the year end for a 5% change in the relevant forward rates, holding other variables
constant.

If the input of market forward rate to the valuation models of these foreign currency contracts had been 5%
higher against RMB while all other variables were held constant, the loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 (loss for the year ended 31 December 2014) would decrease as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
USD forward rate 37,832 92,968
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)

There will be an equal and opposite impact on the loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 (loss for the
year ended 31 December 2014) where there had been 5% lower.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the
pricing model used in the fair value valuation of these contracts which involves multiple variables are
interdependent.

The Group was also exposed to other price risk arising from the foreign currency contracts with different
strike rate. The fair values of these contracts were calculated using the Black-Scholes Model. Details of these
derivative financial instruments are set out in note 22.

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

The directors of the Company has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously monitoring
forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

In respect of bank loans that the Group has breached the terms of bank loan, the Group will renegotiate
the terms of such loan with relevant banker. The balance of such bank loan will be reclassified as current
liabilities at the end of reporting period when the renegotiation had not been concluded. In any event,
should the lender calls for immediate repayment of the loan, the Group will source of adequate alternative
sources of finance to ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations of the Group.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for the non-derivative financial liabilities and
foreign currency contracts. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments settle on a net basis, undiscounted net cash (inflows) outflows are presented.
Whereas they require gross settlement, the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on these derivatives
are shown in the tables. For foreign currency contracts with predetermined exercisable period with gross
settlement, the tables have been drawn up based on the assumption that the Group will exercise such
contracts on the maturity of the exercisable period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

For the foreign currency contracts with different strike rates, undiscounted gross inflows/outflows are
not presented since the Group is unable to estimate the ultimate timing and settlement amount of these

contracts.

Weighted

average
interest rate
%

Non-derivative financial liabilities
As at 31 December 2015

On demand
and

less than

3 months
RMB'000

Over

3 months
but not
more than
6 months
RMB'000

Over

6 months
but not
more than
1 year
RMB'000

Over
1 year
RMB'000

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
RMB'000

Carrying
amount
RMB'000

Trade and other payables - 2,360,347 1,743,353 - - 4,103,700 4,103,700
Borrowings related to bills
discounted with recourse* - 725,759 413,681 - - 1,139,440 1,139,440
Long-term debentures 6.88 - 163,267 - 53,556 216,823 207,621
Long-term bank loans 5.57 6,327 - - - 6,327 6,250
Short-term bank loans 493 767,042 400,098 254,048 - 1,421,188 1,402,183
Obligations under finance leases 7.43 22,004 22,034 44,161 87,112 175,311 162,575
3,881,479 2,742,433 298,209 140,668 7,062,789 7,021,769
Foreign currency contracts assets
- gross settlement
As at 31 December 2015
Foreign currency contracts
- inflows (444,224)  (367,068)  (240,004) - (1,051,296) N/A
- outflows 449,381 378,389 246,379 - 1,074,149 N/A
5,157 11,321 6,375 - 22,853 N/A
Foreign currency contracts assets
- net settlement
As at 31 December 2015
Foreign currency contracts 1,100 = = = 1,100 1,097
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Over Over
Ondemand 3 months 6 months
Weighted and but not but not Total

average  less than more than more than Over undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 3 months 6 months 1 year 1 year cash flows  amount
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
As at 31 December 2014

Trade and other payables - 3,060,366 616,592 - - 3,676,958 3,676,958
Borrowings related to bills

discounted with recourse* - 1,049,061 524,960 - - 1,574,021 1,574,021
Long-term debentures 6.88 - - - 229,973 229,973 207,021
Long-term bank loans 6.46 7,306 7,033 135,543 6,743 156,625 153,986
Short-term bank loans 473 1,210,267 190,121 572,750 - 1,973,138 1,940,861

5,327,000 1,338,706 708,293 236,716 7,610,715 7,552,847

Foreign currency contracts assets
- gross settlement

As at 31 December 2014
Foreign currency contracts

- inflows (491,221)  (725,630)  (515,640) = (1,732,491 N/A
- outflows 492,622 724,752 518,458 = 1,735,832 N/A
1,401 (878) 2,818 = 3,341 N/A

Foreign currency contracts assets
- net settlement
As at 31 December 2014
Foreign currency contracts (164) (78) 251 - 9 4

* The amounts included above for borrowings related to bills discounted with recourse are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to pay for the discounted bills if the bills receivables are not paid at maturity. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that these
amount will be settled by the counterparties who issued the relevant bills which have been discounted to the
banks.

Q
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each

reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets

and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities;
o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value as at Fair value as at Fair value
Financial assets 31 December 2015 31 December 2014 hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
Foreign currency contracts Current assets - nil ~ Current assets - Level 2 (1) Outright forward contracts
classified as derivative Current liabilities - RMB324,000 The valuation is estimated based on the
financial instruments in the RMB2,927,000 Current liabilities - difference between the predetermined
consolidated statement of RMB1,047,000 forward rate and the market forward
financial position rate of expiring date of the contracts at

the valuation date. And take into
account of the time from the valuation
date to the contract expiring date and
the RMB risk free interest rate.

Current assets -nil Current assets - (2) Forward contracts with flexible
Current liabilities - RMB2,494,000 settlement dates
RMB20,796,000  Current liabilities — The valuation is estimated based on the
RMB5,044,000 difference between the predetermined

forward rate and the market forward
rate of expiring date of the contracts at
the valuation date. And take into
account of the time from the valuation
date to the contract expiring date and
the RMB risk free interest rate.

Black-Scholes Model and Binomial Model
Black-Scholes Model is used to calculate the
value of a European Put option while
Binomial Model is used to calculate
the value of an American Put option.
The key determinants of both models
are predetermined forward exchange
rate, spot exchange rates and market
risk free interest rate.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value as at Fair value as at Fair value
Financial assets 31 December 2015 31 December 2014 hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
Non-current liabilities  Non-current liabilities  Level 2 (3) Forward contracts with flexible
-RMB9,405,000 -RMB3,877,000 exchange rate
Black-Scholes Model

The key determinants of the model are
predetermined range exchange rates,
predetermined forward exchange rates,
predetermined upper trigger exchange rate,
spot exchange rates, market risk free
interest rate.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the current and prior years.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

The disclosure set out in the table below include financial assets and financial liabilities that are offset in the
Group's condensed consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the deposit under the finance leases and the
obligations under finance lease payable to the counter party that are due to be settled on the same date
and the Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
Gross financial liabilities assets

amounts set off in the presented in the
of recognised statement of statement of
financial assets financial position financial position

Deposit under finance lease 42,855 (42,855) -

Gross amounts Net amounts

of recognised of financial

Gross financial assets liabilities

amounts set off in the presented in the

of recognised statement of statement of
financial liabilities financial position financial position

Obligations under finance lease (205,430) 42,855 (162,575) 6
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information has been identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), the chief executive officer
(“CEQ"), for the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing their performance. The CODM
reviews the revenue and result by geographical location of customers for performance assessment and
resource allocation. No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are not regularly
provided to the CODM.

SEGMENT REVENUES AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating and reportable segments for

the year.
Revenue Results

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mainland China (the “PRC") 3,856,611 5,162,050 534,014 1,094,773
Asia (excluding PRC) 2,301,759 2,088,574 271,634 177,793
Americas 922,343 1,182,835 169,204 190,821
Africa 347,398 387,663 33,812 67,535
Europe 316,561 391,677 51,032 68,149
Oceania 29,484 20,392 6,022 4,243
7,774,156 9,233,191 1,065,718 1,603,314
Unallocated other income 69,751 54,227
Unallocated expenses (1,035,206) (847,075)

Staff costs included in selling and
distribution costs and administrative

expenses (479,760) (487,994)
Charitable donations (2,762) (679)
Allowance for doubtful debts (88,259) (36,277)
Net gain (loss) in fair value changes on

foreign currency forward contracts 3,638 (32,046)
Finance costs (186,169) (262,042)
Loss before taxation (653,049) (8,572)

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to outside customers during the year.

Segment results represent the gross profits earned by each segment. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in PRC (country of domicile).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is detailed in the segment revenue analyses
above. All of the Group’s non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) are geographically located in
the PRC.

The management considered that the cost to develop the revenue by individual countries other than PRC
and Americas are excessive and revenues other than “PRC” and “Americas” above attributed to each
individual country are not material.

Revenue from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from major products:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Residential air-conditioners
— split type 5,756,030 7,031,397
— window type 487,197 339,347
— portable type 29,217 30,479

6,272,444 7,401,223

Commercial air-conditioners 890,313 925,416
Air-conditioners’ parts and components 368,762 597,941
Others 242,637 308,611

7,774,156 9,233,191

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, none of the Group’s customers had
individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue.

Analysis of capital additions, depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets and operating lease rentals on
land use rights by location of customers were not presented as in the opinion of the directors, there is no
appropriate basis in allocating the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and land use rights by
location of customers.

The goods sold to various geographical market were principally produced from the same production
facilities situated in the PRC. Moreover, all of the Group's assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 and 31

December 2014 were located in the PRC.
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8. OTHER EXPENSES

Guangdong Chigo Air-conditioning Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Chigo”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, participated in the energy-saving subsidy scheme implemented by the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC pursuant to which government subsidies were received in the previous years for the sale of energy-
saving residential air-conditioning products in the PRC.

During the year, Guangdong Chigo received a notice from the Finance Bureau of Lishui Town, Nanhai,
Foshan, the PRC (the “Lishui Finance Bureau”) pursuant to which Lishui Finance Bureau demanded the
return of the subsidies received by Guangdong Chigo in previous years amounting to RMB199,190,000. As
a result, the Group has made the full provision of the amount (see note 25) and included in other expenses.

9. FINANCE COSTS

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Interests on:
Bank loans 96,320 132,080
Debentures 13,750 12,084
Finance lease 12,042 -
Other borrowings 64,057 117,878
Total borrowing costs 186,169 262,042
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) 2,580 2,661
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme contributions 66,932 70,230
Other staff's equity-settled share based payments 6,608 9,451
Other staff costs 774,989 794,370
851,109 876,712
Less: Staff costs included in research and development costs (59,123) (56,984)
791,986 819,728
Allowance for doubtful debts included in other gains and losses 88,259 36,277
Amortisation of intangible assets included in administrative expenses 350 345
Auditor’s remuneration 2,262 2,272
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense including write down on
inventories of RMB10,814,000 (2014: RMB20,752,000) 6,708,438 7,629,877
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 175,714 149,396
Impairment of goodwill included in other expenses - 9,857
Operating lease rentals in respect of
— land use rights 5,378 5,378
— rented premises 29,590 46,468
Provision for warranty included in cost of goods sold 29,939 29,967
Release of prepaid lease payments 17,251 16,872
Write-off/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,582 216
Advertising and promotion costs 264,651 231,999
Transportation costs 141,445 132,329
and after crediting:
Amortisation of government grants 1,288 1,288
Government subsidies included in other income* 3,906 4,812
Interest income 50,419 30,847
Net exchange gains included in other gains and losses 30,494 6,993
Reversal of doubtful debts included in other gains and losses 26,171 33,475
Sales of scrap materials 1 7,453
* The government subsidies provided by the PRC government to the Group were paid as an incentive for research

and development on new environmental friendly products. There are no conditions and contingencies attached to

the receipt of the government subsidies.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

11.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of directors during the year are analysed as follows:
2015 2014

Retirement Equity- Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefits settled Salaries henefits settled

and other scheme share based and other scheme  share based
Fees  hbenefits contributions  payments Total Fees  benefits contributions  payments Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Executive directors
- Mr. Li Xinghao - 385 - 67 452 - 362 4 67 433
- Dr. Zheng Zuyi - 620 5 420 1,085 - 620 5 20 1,045
- Dr. Ding Xiaojiang - - - 84 84 = = = 84 84
~ Mr. Huang Xingke - 401 4 210 615 = 500 5 210 715

Independent non-executive directors

- Mr. Wan Junchu 120 - - 8 128 120 - - 8 128
- Mr. Zhang Xiaoming 120 - - 8 128 120 - - 8 128
- Mr. Fu Xiaosi 120 - - 8 128 120 - - 8 128

360 1,406 9 805 2,580 360 1,482 14 805 2,661

Mr. Li Xinghao is also the Chief Executive of the Company. The executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as the
directors of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

The five highest paid individuals included one (2014: two) director of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2014: three) highest paid employees
are as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Employee
— basic salaries and allowances 2,826 2,101
— retirement benefits scheme contributions 13 5
— equity-settled share based payments 277 709
3,116 2,815
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of employees

2015 2014

Up to HKD1,000,000 3 2

HKD 1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1 1
TAXATION

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

The charge comprises:

PRC income tax (15,199) (53,751)
Over-provision for prior year 9,045 3,523
Deferred taxation (note 19) (6,329) (1,579)

(12,483) (51,807)

The PRC income tax is calculated at the applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC. In addition, the income tax rate is 25% except that certain PRC subsidiary was
officially endorsed as High-New Technology Enterprises and eligible to preferential Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
rate of 15% from year 2014 to 2016.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation of the

PRC, Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, only the profits earned by foreign-investment enterprise prior to 1 January
2008, when distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered and exempted from withholding tax.
Whereas, dividend distributed out of the profits generated thereafter, shall be subject to EIT at 10% and
withheld by the PRC subsidiary, pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its Detailed
Implementation Rules. Deferred tax liability on the undistributed profits earned during the year has been
accrued at the tax rate of 10% on the expected dividend stream of 30% of the relevant subsidiary which is
determined by the directors of the Company.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

12. TAXATION

The charge for the year is reconciled to loss before taxation as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Loss before taxation (653,049) (8,572)
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 25% 163,262 2,143
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes (i) (79,972) (86,293)
Effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (ij) 322 17,914
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised (27,610) (12,925)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (88,439) (11,536)
Tax effect of a subsidiary with preferential tax rate 10,127 34,739
Over-provision for prior year 9,045 3,523
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences previously
not recognised - 2,385
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised 782 -
PRC withholding tax on undistributed earnings - (1,757)
Tax charge for the year (12,483) (51,807)
(i) Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes includes amounts of non-deductible expenses incurred in

respect of the manufacture of high energy-saving products.

(ii) Effect of income not taxable for tax purposes includes amounts of non-taxable government subsidies for land use
right.

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB690,473,000 (2014: loss of RMB81,039,000) and on the weighted average number of
8,434,178,000 (2014: 8,434,178,000) shares in issue during the year.

The computation of loss per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share

options because the exercise price of those share options was higher than the average market price for
shares during both years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Plant and Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles machinery  in progress Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

COST
At 1 January 2014 430,701 158,370 51,780 772,092 453,276 1,866,219
Additions 20,707 52,079 4,440 139,763 19,375 236,364
Write-off/disposals - (4,670) (4,016) (12,820) - (21,506)
Acquired on acquisition

of a subsidiary - 172 - - - 172
Transfers 211,496 6,993 - 158,149 (376,638) -
At 31 December 2014 662,904 212,944 52,204 1,057,184 96,013 2,081,249
Additions 7,464 80,830 999 218,353 51,006 358,652
Write-off/disposals - (5,423) (3,413) (239,107) - (247,943)
Transfers 70,418 1,473 - 12,329 (84,220) -
At 31 December 2015 740,786 289,824 49,790 1,048,759 62,799 2,191,958
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2014 34,957 91,833 26,911 295,794 - 449,495
Provided for the year 20,360 22,477 4,242 102,317 - 149,396
Eliminated on write-off/

disposals - (4,286) (3,766) (8,171) - (16,223)
At 31 December 2014 55,317 110,024 27,387 389,940 - 582,668
Provided for the year 25,493 33,477 4,287 112,457 - 175,714
Eliminated on write-off/

disposals - (4,852) (3,213) (27,371) - (35,436)
At 31 December 2015 80,810 138,649 28,461 475,026 - 722,946
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2015 659,976 151,175 21,329 573,733 62,799 1,469,012
At 31 December 2014 607,587 102,920 24,817 667,244 96,013 1,498,581

The Group'’s buildings are erected on land held under land use rights in the PRC.

The net book value of plant and machinery of RMB203,538,000 (2014: nil) is held under finance leases. 6

Q




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

15. LAND USE RIGHTS

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Analysed for reporting purposes as
— non-current assets 210,016 215,394
— current assets 5,378 5,378
215,394 220,772

The balance represents the prepayment of rentals for land use rights situated in the PRC for periods ranging
from 44 years to 50 years. The Group has pledged certain land used rights with a carrying amount of
RMB13,530,000 (2014: RMB 13,816,000), to secure bank loans to the Group (see note 29).

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

CARRYING VALUE
At 1 January 1,083 1,192
Additions - 236
Charged to profit or loss (350) (345)
At 31 December 733 1,083

Included in intangible assets are patents and trademarks in which patents represent the exclusive rights
in connection with certain product design. The cost of patents and trademarks has been amortised on a
straight line basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Analysed for reporting purposes as

— non-current assets 213,598 226,624
— current assets 16,700 16,653
230,298 243,277

The balance represents prepayment of rentals for land and buildings situated in the PRC for a period of 20
years under operating leases.

CHIGO HOLDING LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2015




18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

As of 31 December 2015 and 2014, the available-for-sale investment represents the Group’s investment
in 10% equity interests in a private limited liability company, 8 1L T # %/ 88 E 2B R A7), which was
established in the PRC. I #FT/ NS E K BBR A F) is engaged in financing services. The investment is
measured at cost less impairment as the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the

directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

PRC

withholding

Accelerated tax on

accounting Warranty undistributed
depreciation provision earnings Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 2014 3,131 9,776 (20,180) (7,273)
Charged to profit or loss 3,048 (2,870) (1,757) (1,579)
At 31 December 2014 6,179 6,906 (21,937) (8,852)
Charged to profit or loss (5,045) (1,284) - (6,329)
At 31 December 2015 1,134 5,622 (21,937) (15,181)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Deferred tax assets 6,756 13,085
Deferred tax liabilities (21,937) (21,937)
(15,181) (8,852)

At 31 December 2015, the Group has unrecognised deferred tax liability of RMB37,271,000 (2014:
RMB76,891,000) in relation to PRC withholding tax on undistributed earnings of RMB372,707,000 (2014
RMB768,906,000) due to the retention of undistributed earnings by the PRC subsidiaries determined by the

directors of the Company.

Q




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of RMB396,770,000 (2014: RMB46,142,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such loss
due to the unpredictability of the future profit streams. The tax loss may be carried forward in five years.
Besides, the Group has deductible temporary differences of RMB110,440,000 (2014: RMB51,700,000)
relating to allowance on doubtful debts, payroll and welfare payables and unrealised gain/loss on financial
derivatives at 31 December 2015. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to deductible
temporary differences as it is uncertain that future taxable profit stream will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

20. INVENTORIES

2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB’000

Raw materials 315,201 355,811
Work in progress 59,255 47,815
Finished goods 1,460,872 1,377,225

1,835,328 1,780,851

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade receivables 3,060,534 3,425,207
Bills receivables 1,633,957 2,106,058
4,694,491 5,531,265

Deposits paid to suppliers 101,558 165,049
Prepayments 20,420 18,273
Advances to staff 6,275 4,711
Value-added tax recoverable (note 1) 75,625 37,932
Value-added tax refundable (note 2) 41,269 17,180
Other receivables 44,179 18,151

4,983,817 5,792,561

Note 1: Value-added tax recoverable (“VAT") represents the net balance of the deductible VAT over VAT payables for
domestic sales.

Note 2: Value-added tax refundable represents the receivable of VAT refund for export sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting date, bills receivables outstanding amounting to RMB1,139,440,000 (2014:
RMB1,574,021,000) have been discounted to certain banks. The Group continues to present the discounted
bills with recourse as bills receivables until maturity.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. The customers are allowed a credit period of 30 days
to 180 days from date of issuance of the invoices, while the long-established customers are allowed a credit
period of 210 days. The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables presented based on the
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period which approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates.

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Age
0 — 30 days 563,226 831,044
31 - 60 days 267,919 782,837
61 — 90 days 456,846 760,012
91 — 180 days 2,684,189 2,731,926
181 — 365 days 709,115 407,236
Over 1 year 13,196 18,210

4,694,491 5,531,265

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are trade debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB581,869,000 (2014: RMB562,930,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as there is no adverse change in the credit standing of the debtors
from the date of credit was initially granted.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Age
31 - 60 days - -
61 — 90 days 32,609 35,425
91 — 180 days 351,373 337,340
181 — 365 days 190,685 171,955
Over 1 year 7,202 18,210
581,869 562,930

Q

6




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is 184
days (2014: 178 days).

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group monitors changes in the credit quality
of the trade receivables since the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors considered
that the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

No interest is charged on trade receivables. Allowances on trade receivables are made based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sales of goods by reference to past default experience and objective
evidences of impairment determined by the difference between the carrying amount and the present value
of the estimate future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 34,591 35,338
Allowances recognised on receivables 88,259 36,277
Amount written off during the year as uncollectible - (3,549)
Amounts recovered during the year (26,171) (33,475)
At 31 December 96,679 34,591

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of RMB96,679,000 (2014: RMB34,591,000) which have been in financial difficulties. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities:

2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB’000

usb 1,158,287 1,355,388
EURO 38,868 39,284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group’s financial assets as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 that were transferred
to banks by discounting those receivables on a full recourse basis. If the bills receivables are not paid out
at maturity, the Group is required to pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount
of the receivables and has recognised the cash received on the transfer as a secured borrowing. These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

Bills receivable discounted
to banks with full recourse

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Carrying amount of transferred assets included in trade receivables 1,158,266 1,611,880
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 1,139,440 1,574,021

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets Liabilities

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Derivatives not under hedge accounting
— foreign currency contracts — current - 2,818 23,723 6,091
— foreign currency contracts — non-current - — 9,405 3,877
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group has the following foreign currency contracts with (i) predetermined
exercisable period and maturity dates and (ii) predetermined exercisable period with different strike rate.
Their major terms are as follows:

(i) predetermined exercisable period and maturity periods
Principal amount Exercisable period Forward contract rates
65 contracts to sell USD145,330,000 From 4 January 2016 to USD1/RMB6.3032 to
(gross settlement) 30 December 2016 USD1/RMB6.5000
Principal amount Maturity Forward contract rates
9 contracts to sell USD30,000,000 From 28 January 2016 to USD1/RMB6.4306 to
(net settlement) 26 September 2016 USD1/RMB6.5037

(ii) predetermined exercisable period with different strike rates

Principal amount Exercisable period Upper/lower strike rate
1 contract to sell USD10,000,000 From 29 January 2015 to USD1/RMB5.7000 to
(gross settlement) 19 May 2016 USD1/RMB6.4000

At 31 December 2014, the Group has the following foreign currency contracts with (i) predetermined
exercisable period and maturity dates and (ii) predetermined exercisable period with different strike rate.
Their major terms are as follows:

(i) predetermined exercisable period and maturity periods
Principal amount Exercisable period Forward contract rates
63 contracts to sell USD257,390,293 From 1 January 2015 to USD1/RMB6.1457 to
(gross settlement) 31 December 2015 USD1/RMB6.3823
Principal amount Maturity Forward contract rates
20 contracts to sell USD43,000,000 From 20 January 2015 to USD1/RMB6.1900 to
(net settlement) 24 December 2015 USD1/RMB6.3822
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(ii) predetermined exercisable period with different strike rate

Principal amount Maturity Upper/lower strike rates
1 contracts to sell USD10,000,000 From 29 January 2015 to USD1/RMB5.7000 to
(gross settlement) 19 May 2016 USD1/RMB6.4000

The fair value of the foreign currency contracts with predetermined exercisable period and maturity dates
was determined based on the valuation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, an independent
valuer of the Group.

The fair value of the foreign currency contracts with predetermined exercisable period are determined using
the option pricing model of which the foreign currency contracts embedded a time option where the holder
can exercise the foreign currency contracts within a specified period upon presenting the contract to the
issuer. The inputs into the model at the respective dates were as follows:

Volatility 7.0575% 3.4700%
RMB risk-free interest rate 2.5229% 3.3842%
USD risk-free interest rate 0.7185% 0.2514%
Spot price for USD foreign currency contracts RMB6.4937 RMB6.2055
USD/RMB market forward rate USD1/RMB6.3032 to USD1/RMB6.1457 to

USD1/RMB6.5000 USD1/RMB6.3823

The fair value of the foreign currency contracts with predetermined maturity dates are determined using the
forward pricing model based on the difference between the predetermined forward rate on the respective
date of which the contracts were entered and the market forward rate at the end of the reporting period.
The inputs into the model at the respective dates were as follows:

2015 2014

RMB risk-free interest rate 2.5229% 3.3842%
USD/RMB market forward rate USD1/RMB6.4306 to USD1/RMB6.1900 to
USD1/RMB6.5037 USD1/RMB6.3822

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates is the carrying amounts of the Group’s
restricted deposits. The fair value of the foreign currency contracts with predetermined exercisable period
with different strike rate were determined by the respective issuing bank using Black-Scholes Model with
reference to predetermined range exchange rates, predetermined forward exchange rates, predetermined
upper trigger exchange rate and spot exchange rates.

3




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

23. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s short-term investment mainly represent financial products issued

by banks in the PRC, with an expected but not guaranteed return at 1.72% per annum, depending on

the market prices of its underlying financial instruments. The financial products are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The directors of the Company consider the fair value of the financial
products approximate to their principal amount as at 31 December 2015. No fair value change is recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2015. The short-term investments amounting to RMB40 million were
redeemed in January 2016 at the principal amount together with return which approximated the expected
return.

24. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group’s short term restricted deposits represented balances deposited in banks in the PRC, which
management believes are of high credit quality and does not expect high credit risks in this respect. The
Group's restrict deposits are with initial term from 15 — 90 days and are restricted for obtaining a guarantee
interest rate return and are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average effective interest rates on restricted deposits was 3.54%
per annum.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates is the carrying amounts of the Group is
restricted deposits.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The bank deposits carry interest at the prevailing market interest rate
ranging from 0.35% to 0.42% (2014: 0.35% to 0.42%) per annum.

At 31 December 2015, pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks to secure issuance of
bills payables amounting to RMB3,101,776,000 (2014: RMB2,935,873,000) which carry interest at market
rates ranged from 2.6% to 3.0% (2014: 2.6% to 3.0%) per annum.

Certain restricted deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash of RMB1,268,648,000 (2014:
RMB1,416,755,000) were denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined by the government of the PRC and the remittance of these
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.

Included in pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant group companies:

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

equivalent equivalent

usD 88,173 122,592
HKD 2,978 1,887
EURO 251 1,007
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade payables 580,174 540,577
Bills payables 3,101,776 2,935,873

3,681,950 3,476,450

Customers’ deposits 275,760 257,445
Payroll and welfare payables 72,583 67,651
Other tax payables 54,634 54,712
Accruals 68,162 62,067
Other interest bearing payables 84,000 46,000
Provision for the sales rebate 157,042 -
Advertising and promotion costs payable 66,055 25,999
Transportation costs payable 22,888 7,586
Provision for energy-saving subsidies refundable 199,190 -
Other payables 126,923 130,457

4,809,187 4,128,367

The Group normally receives credit terms of 30 days to 180 days from its suppliers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade and bills payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Age
0 - 90 days 2,124,862 2,155,368
91 — 180 days 1,439,028 1,246,853
181 — 365 days 83,759 69,509
1 - 2 years 34,301 4,720

3,681,950 3,476,450
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26. WARRANTY PROVISION

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

CARRYING VALUE
At 1 January 25,641 26,862
Additional provision for the year 29,939 29,967
Utilisation of provision (38,502) (31,188)
At 31 December 17,078 25,641

The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability under 3 to 6 years
warranty granted on air-conditioning products, based on prior experience and industry average for defective
products.

27. BORROWINGS RELATED TO BILLS DISCOUNTED WITH RECOURSE

During the year, bank bills issued by customers and discounted by the Group carry interest at rates ranging
from 2.38% to 5.69% (2014: 1.08% to 7.08%) per annum at the end of reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group discounted bills receivables with recourse in the
aggregated amounts of RMB2,706,915,000 (2014: RMB4,089,561,000) to banks for short-term financing of
which the associated borrowings are amounted to RMB1,139,440,000 (2014: RMB1,574,021,000) as at 31
December 2015.

28. DEBENTURES

On 12 May 2014, Guangdong Chigo, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, issued long-term debentures
in an aggregate principal amount of RMB50,000,000 (the “2014 Debentures”). The 2014 Debentures, with
a fixed coupon rate of 8.0% per annum and a face value of RMB100 each, were listed and transferrable

on the inter-bank debenture market in the PRC, at 100% of its face value with a maturity period of three
years.

On 23 May 2013, Guangdong Chigo issued long-term debentures in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB150,000,000 (the “2013 Debentures”). The 2013 Debentures, with a fixed coupon rate of 6.50% per
annum and a face value of RMB100 each, were listed and transferrable on the inter-bank debenture market
in the PRC, at 100% of its face value with a maturity period of three years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

DEBENTURES (Continued)

The movement of the Debentures during the year is set out below:

2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB’000

Carrying value at 1 January 207,021 154,600

Repayment of debentures and interests thereon (13,750) (9,750)
Proceeds from issue of debentures - 50,000

Transaction costs - (363)
Net proceeds 193,271 194,487
Interest expense 14,350 12,534
Carrying value at 31 December 207,621 207,021

Carrying amount repayable:

— Within one year 155,500 -
— More than one year, but not more than two years 52,121 207,021
BANK LOANS
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
Bank loans
— unsecured 976,303 1,561,168
— secured by bank deposits 425,880 429,829
— guaranteed by Mr. Li Xinghao and secured by land used rights 6,250 89,250
— guaranteed by top management of a subsidiary of the Group
and secured by trade receivables of the Group - 14,600

1,408,433 2,094,847

At the end of the reporting period, Mr. Li Xinghao, being a director and ultimate controlling party of the
Company, has given personal guarantee to certain banks for banking facilities granted to a PRC subsidiary to
the extent of RMB6,250,000 (2014: RMB89,250,000). In addition, the bank loans are pledged with certain
land used rights that situated in PRC with carrying amount of RMB13,530,000 (2014: RMB 13,816,000).

Q
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29. BANK LOANS (Continued)
31.12.2015 31.12.2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

Carrying amount repayable:
Within one year 1,408,433 2,088,597
More than one year, but not exceeding two years - 6,250

1,408,433 2,094,847
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities (1,408,433) (2,088,597)

Amount due after one year - 6,250

Also, at the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised available credit facilities amounting to
RMB1,386,281,000 (2014: RMB4,942,616,000).

Included in short-term and long-term bank loans are the following amounts denominated in currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group companies:

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000
equivalent equivalent

USD (mainly charged at LIBOR plus premium) 128,183 642,397

Average interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings were as follows:

2015 2014

Bank loans 4.61% 6.30%

During the year, in respect of a bank loan with a carrying amount of RMB140,000,000 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB 17,407,000), a subsidiary of the Group breached certain of the terms of the bank loan,
which are primarily related to the net profit to sales ratio of the subsidiary. On discovery of the breach, the
directors of the Company informed the lender and commenced a renegotiation of the terms of the loan
with the relevant banker. As at 31 December 2015, those negotiations had not been concluded. The loan
has been classified as a current liability as at 31 December 2015 based on its repayment schedule. The
directors of the Company believe that adequate alternative sources of finance are available to ensure that
there is no threat to the continuing operations of the Group.
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
— Current liabilities 78,822 -
— Non-current liabilities 83,753 -
162,575 -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into two sale and lease back agreements with
a leasing company in the PRC. Under the arrangement, the Group sold certain machineries to the leasing
company and concurrently leased the assets back for a term of 36 months with monthly rent repayments.
At the end of the lease term, the Group has the option to purchase these assets at nominal value. As such,
the sale and lease back arrangement resulted in a finance lease.

As at 31 December 2015, the finance lease has an outstanding obligation of RMB 162,575,000. The average
effective interest rate of the finance lease is 7.4% per annum. The Group's obligations under finance leases
are secured by a corporate guarantee provided by the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Amounts payable under finance lease

Within one year 88,199 - 78,822 -
In more than one year but not more
than two years 84,711 - 81,369 -
In more than two year but not more
than three years 2,401 - 2,384 -
175,311 — 162,575 —~
Less: future finance charges (12,736) - - -
Present value of lease obligations 162,575 -

Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months (shown under
current liabilities) 78,822 -

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 83,753 -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

31. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

In 2006 and 2007, the Group received government grants totalling RMB65,400,000 from the relevant

PRC local authorities for the investment in economic development zones located in Anhui province and
Jiangxi province in the PRC. They were granted as an incentive for obtaining land use rights amounting to
RMB65,400,000 by the Group for the construction of production facilities in the economic development
zones. In 2010, the Group received government grants of RMB4,600,000 from relevant PRC local authorities
for the acquisition of plant and machinery amounting to RMB9,440,000.

In 2011, the Group returned government grants amounting to RMB24,000,000 in connection with the
investment in economic development zone located in Anhui Province in the PRC by surrendering the relevant
land use rights to the PRC local authorities.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the related operating lease rentals in respect of land use
rights and related depreciation in respect of plant and machinery which has been charged to profit or loss
amounted to RMB864,000 (2014: RMB864,000) and RMB944,000 (2014: RMB944,000) respectively and
the government grant which was recognised as other income was RMB828,000 (2014: RMB828,000) and
RMB460,000 (2014: RMB460,000) respectively. As at 31 December 2015, an amount of RMB36,192,000
(2014: RMB37,480,000) remains unamortised.

32. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Issued and fully paid
Number Number

of shares Amount of shares Amount
‘000 HKD'000 ‘000 HKD’'000

At 1 January 2014,
31 December 2014 and 2015 50,000,000 500,000 8,434,178 84,341

RMB’000

Shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position at —
31 December 2015 and 2014 71,906
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 19
June 2009 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible employees and customers.
Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally,
the Company may, from time to time, grant share options to outside third parties for settlement in respect
of goods or services provided to the Company. The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 651,200,000 (2014: 687,600,000), representing 7.7% (2014: 8.2%)
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. On 13 May 2011, under the resolution of the annual
general meeting of the Company, which was approved by the shareholders, the total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted

and may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company'’s share capital or with a value in excess of HKD5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company'’s shareholders.

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board of Directors is empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at
the time of grant of any particular option. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the movements of the share options granted are as follows:

Number of share options

Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding

Type of Date of Vesting Exercisable price at during at during at

participants grant period period per share 1.1.2014 the year  31.12.2014  theyear  31.12.2015

HKD

Directors 2392011 23.9.2011 23.9.2013 045 28,800,000 - 28,800,000 - 28,800,000
-2292013  -22.9.2018

23.9.2011 23.9.2016 045 67,200,000 - 67,200,000 - 67,200,000
-2292016  -22.9.2018

Employees 2392011 23.9.2011 23.9.2013 045 178,536,000  (4,578,000) 173,958,000 (10,380,000) 163,578,000
-2292013  -22.9.2018

23.9.2011 23.9.2016 045 416,684,000  (10,692,000) 405,992,000 (24,220,000) 381,772,000

-2292016  -229.2018

Customers# 2392011 23.9.2011 239.2013 045 3,466,000 = 3,466,000  (534,0000 2,932,000
-2292013  -229.2018
23.9.2011 23.9.2016 045 8,184,000 = 8,184,000 (1,266,0000 6,918,000

-229.2016  -229.2018

702,870,000  (15270,000) 687,600,000 (36,400,000) 651,200,000

Exercisable at end
of the year 206,224,000 195,310,000

# The Company’s share options granted to customers are measured by reference to the fair value of options
granted since the fair value of the customer loyalty to the Group cannot be estimated accurately. There are no
specified performance conditions to be met. The fair value of share options are charged to profit or loss at the
date of grant.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB805,000 (2014: RMB805,000) and RMB6,609,000 (2014:
RMB9,451,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015 in relation to share options granted by the Company
to the Group’s directors and employees of the Group respectively. No share options are exercised during
both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of Guangdong
Y.C. Insurance Agency Limited (“Y.C."”), for a consideration of RMB10,000,000. This acquisition had
been accounted for using the acquisition method. Y. C. is engaged in insurance agency activities in
the PRC. The acquisition was made to enhance the penetration of the Group’s customer base in the
PRC and to support the future business development of the Group.

Consideration transferred RMB’000

Cash 10,000

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition were as follows:

RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment 172
Trade and other receivables 108
Bank balances and cash 164
Trade and other payables (301)

143

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB108,000.
The gross contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$108,000 at the date of acquisition. None of the contractual cash flows were not expected to be
collected at acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition:

RMB’000

Consideration transferred 10,000
Less: Net assets acquired (143)

Goodwill arising on acquisition 9,857
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Y.C.:

RMB'000

Cash consideration paid 10,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (164)
9,836

Y.C. contributed a revenue of RMB56,000 and loss of RMB106,000 for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 December 2014.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2014, total group revenue for the period from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2014 would have been RMB9,233,559,000 and loss for the period would have

been RMB63,130,000. The proforma information was for illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily
an indication of the revenue and results of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, nor was it intended to be a projection of future results.

The goodwill acquired in business combination was allocated to cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. The directors consider Y.C. represents a separate CGU for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing. At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of goodwill
from the acquisition of Y.C.:

2014
RMB’000

COST

Balance at 1 January 2014 -
Arising from acquisition of Y.C. 9,857
Impairment of goodwill (9,857)

Balance at 31 December 2014 =

Goodwill arising on acquisition of Y.C. was impaired at the date of acquisition based on the directors’ best
estimate about the future cash flows expected to generate from Y.C.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of rented premises under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Within one year 24,966 26,073
In the second to fifth year inclusive 20,405 39,120
After five years - 944
45,371 66,137
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of 1 to 20 years.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 98,645 77,082

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group's qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the MPF in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF are held separately from those of the Group in fund under the control of trustee. The Group and each
of the employees make monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances with related parties disclosed in respective notes in the
consolidated financial statements, during the year, the Group paid miscellaneous expenses totalling
RMB648,000 (2014: RMB939,000) to a related company which is controlled by Mr. Li Xinghao, a director
and ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The details of remuneration of key management personnel, represents emoluments of the directors of the

Company and are set out in note 11.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Attributable
proportion of
Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital/registered
establishment/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Group indirectly Principal activity
2015 2014
Guangdong Chigo PRC as a wholly foreign ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales of
owned enterprise for - RMB996,140,000 air-conditioners
a term of 50 years
commencing

1 September 2006

FREANI)BRAF PRC as a limited liability ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales of
Chigo Air-Conditioning enterprise for a term of - RMB45,000,000 air-conditioners
(Jiu Jiang) Co., Ltd. 10 years commencing
1 June 2007
ERERRBRERRAERAT PRC as a joint stock Shares 70% 70%  Manufacture and sales
Guangdong Chigo Heating limited company - RMB100,000,000 of commercial
and Ventilation Equipment air-conditioners

Co., Ltd. ("Chigo Heating")

ERESREERERAT PRC as a limited liability ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and
Guangdong Chigo Precision enterprise - RMB200,000,000 sales of compressor

Machinery Co., Ltd.

ERSaNeRERRAR PRC - as a wholly foreign ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Guangdong Chigo Kechuang ~ owned enterprise for a - RMB100,000,000 of copper products
Copper Co., Ltd. term of 50 years

commencing 11 May 2011

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors
principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any time
during the year except for Guangdong Chigo which has issued debentures (see note 28).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information of non-wholly owned subsidiary is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

RMB’000 RMB'000
Current assets 526,712 522,563
Non-current assets 85,594 82,721
Current liabilities 415,993 431,957
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 136,924 121,329
Non-controlling interests 59,389 51,998
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue 937,778 972,191
Expenses 853,681 903,324
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 84,097 68,867
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company 59,156 48,207
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
the non-controlling interests 24,941 20,660
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 84,097 68,867
Net cash inflows from operating activities 187,462 16,517
Net cash (outflows) inflows from investing activities (128,103) 2,655
Net cash inflows (outflows) from financing activities 18,036 (21,533)
Net cash inflows (outflows) 77,395 (2,361) 6

Q
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material non-controlling interests (Continued)
The financial statements of non-wholly owned subsidiary were prepared in accordance with relevant
accounting principles and the financial reporting framework applicable to the PRC enterprises.

Appropriate adjustments have been made to conform the subsidiary’s accounting policies to those of
the Group.

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary 603,057 607,661
Amounts due from subsidiaries 504,219 520,722

1,107,276 1,128,383

Current assets

Other receivables 84 80
Amounts due from subsidiaries - 10,799
Bank balances and cash 2,472 1,768

2,556 12,647

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries 29,174 19,716
Accruals and other payables 95 90
29,269 19,806

Net current liabilities (26,713) (7,159)
Net assets 1,080,563 1,121,224

Capital and reserves
Share capital 71,906 71,906
Reserves 1,008,657 1,049,318

1,080,563 1,121,224
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'S RESERVE

Share Share
Share compensation options S ET T

premium reserve reserve profits Total

RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

At 1 January 2014 938,187 61,568 49,742 (93,738) 955,759

Profit for the year - - - 83,303 83,303
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payments - - 10,256 - 10,256

At 31 December 2014 938,187 61,568 59,998 (10,435) 1,049,318

Loss for the year - - - (48,075) (48,075)
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payments - - 7,414 - 7,414

At 31 December 2015 938,187 61,568 67,412 (58,510) 1,008,657




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 December

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RESULTS
Revenue 9,342,025 8,801,814 9,183,678 9,233,191 7,774,156
Profit (loss) before taxation (136,148) 136,166 257,702 (8,572) (653,049)
Taxation (7,875) (37,712) (43,283) (51,807) (12,483)
Profit (loss) for the year (144,023) 98,454 214,419 (60,379) (665,532)

Profit (loss) attributable to

— owners of the Company (137,914) 92,055 199,871 (81,039) (690,473)
— non-controlling interests (6,109) 6,399 14,548 20,660 24,941
(144,023) 98,454 214,419 (60,379) (665,532)

As at 31 December

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets 9,522,239 10,395,717 12,049,404 11,162,022 10,221,731
Total liabilities (6,910,543) (7,659,500) (9,079,491) (8,255,732) (7,991,109)
Net assets 2,611,696 2,736,217 2,969,913 2,906,290 2,230,622

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,587,805 2,705,927 2,925,075 2,854,292 2,171,233
Non-controlling interests 23,891 30,290 44,838 51,998 59,389

2,611,696 2,736,217 2,969,913 2,906,290 2,230,622
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